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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DN

GENERAL OVERVIEW

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is pleased to announce the consolidated annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2017 and
report a consolidated profit after taxation attributable
to shareholders of the Company of HK$281,142,000
(2016: HK$305,586,000) and basic earnings per share
of 10.78 HK cents (2016: 11.71 HK cents).

There was a slight decrease of approximately 8.0% in
the profit of the Group for the year 2017 as compared
with that for the corresponding period in 2016. The
consolidated profit of the Group for the year under
review was mainly attributable to a share of the results
of an associate of the Group. The associate is engaged
in property development and investment in Shanghai
and the Group shared from such associate a profit of
HK$177,992,000 (2016: HK$187,883,000).

Furthermore, the Group reported profit in its securities
trading and investment business in Hong Kong due
to receipt of a dividend income of HK$86,000,000
(2016: HK$38,220,000) from its long-term securities
investment and by recording a net gain in its trading
securities investments of HK$7,388,000 (2016:
HK$101,220,000).

As at 31st December, 2017, the equity attributable to the
shareholders of the Company was HK$2,947,204,000
(2016: HK$2,566,614,000) in total and approximately
HK$1.13 (2016: HK$0.98) per share.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.045 per share for the year ended 31st
December, 2017 (2016: HK$0.05 per share). The
final dividend would be payable to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Tuesday, 5th June, 2018 at 4:30
p.m. subject to the shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Dividend warrants are expected to be dispatched on
Thursday, 14th June, 2018.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

Property development and investment as well as
securities trading and investment were the principal
activities of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2017.

Securities trading and investment in Hong Kong
contributed approximately 98.4% of the gross
proceeds from operations of the Group and generated
a segment profit of HK$92,975,000 for the year 2017
(2016: HK$139,028,000). The segment profit was
principally attributable to dividend receipts and a
realized gain on sale of trading securities investments
was the secondary source.

Property development and investment in Shanghai
undertaken by the Group’s subsidiaries accounted for
the remaining approximately 1.6% of the Group’s gross
proceeds from operations for the year under review.
The segment revenue was solely derived from sale and
leasing of car parking spaces and a segment profit of
HK$320,000 (2016: HK$1,131,000) was recorded.

The share of results of an associate of the Group
engaged in property development and investment
in Shanghai was the principal source of the
consolidated profit of the Group for the year 2017
and such associate contributed a significant profit
of HK$177,992,000 (2016: HK$187,883,000) to the
Group.

Property Development and Investment

Apart from the property development and investment
business in Shanghai, the Group holds an investment
property and a few properties for sale in Macau. No
revenue was generated from the property portfolio in
Macau during the year under review.

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Rivera (Holdings) Limited
JICTEBER AT

Shanghai Zhangjiang
Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd.
EERIMEFBERAT

LBREEXERAF
(Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate Co., Limited)

Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate Co., Limited
(“Boulevard Real Estate”), a 93.53%-owned subsidiary
of the Company, holds three hundred-plus car parking
spaces in its sole residential development, namely
Tomson Beautiful Space, in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai (“Zhangjiang Park”).
For the year ended 31st December, 2017, operating
revenue of Boulevard Real Estate was derived solely
from sale and leasing of the said car parking spaces,
which accounted for approximately 1.6% of the
Group’s gross proceeds from operations of the Group.
Taking account of its interest income, Boulevard Real
Estate reported a profit before taxation of HK$4.84
million for the year 2017 (2016: HK$5.33 million).

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED I &£ E B R A &)

(Shanghai Boulevard
Real Estate Co., Limited)
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Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port
Co. Ltd.

Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co.
Ltd. (“SZMP”), in which the Group holds a 37%
interest in its registered capital, is principally engaged
in residential, office and commercial property
development and investment in Shanghai. SZMP
derived its revenue for the year under review mainly
from its residential development project in Fengxian
District, Shanghai. Rental income from the property
projects in Zhangjiang Park was the secondary source.
As a result, for the year ended 31st December, 2017,
SZMP reported a profit of HK$481,060,000 (2016:
HK$507,793,000) and the Group shared a profit of
HK$177,992,000 (2016: HK$187,883,000).

Development in Fengxian District, Shanghai

SZMP completed development of a residential-
cum-commercial project in Fengxian District of
Shanghai in the second-half of the year 2016.
The project comprises 20 blocks of apartment
buildings of eleven to twenty-one storeys, a block
of commercial-cum-office building of ten storeys,
underground car parks and ancillary buildings. This
project was the principal source of profit of SZMP for
the year under review and accounted for approximately
87.0% of the turnover of SZMP.

Tomson Ginkgo Garden
BEEE

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

All 1,244 units of the residential project, namely
Tomson Ginkgo Garden, with total saleable gross floor
area of approximately 144,100 square meters were
sold. Delivery of the residential units to the purchasers
commenced in December 2016 and all sale proceeds
were recognized.

SZMP retains the commercial-cum-office building
with total gross floor area of approximately 11,000
square meters for leasing and holds one thousand six
hundred-plus car parking spaces for sale.

Zhangjiang Tomson Garden

SZMP completed a residential development project in
Zhangjiang Park, namely Zhangjiang Tomson Garden,
in four phases and the last phase was finished in 2014.
All residential units earmarked for sale have been sold
out.

SZMP now retains residential gross floor area of
approximately 65,400 square meters for leasing and
holds around one thousand car parking spaces for
sale. All the residential rentable rooms were leased out
as at 31st December, 2017 and there were sales of
three hundred-plus car parking spaces during the year
under review. This project accounted for approximately
5.6% of the turnover of SZMP for the year 2017.

Zhangjiang Tomson Garden
RIBERE

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JI|JAI 5 [E B R 2 &)
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Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port

SZMP retains 7 blocks of office buildings in Zhangjiang
Micro-electronics Port situated in Zhangjiang Park for
leasing purpose. As at 31st December, 2017, the total
rentable gross floor area for commercial and office
purposes were approximately 90,200 square meters
and 96.2% were let, contributing approximately 6.2%
of the turnover of SZMP for the year under review.

Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port
EIMEFE

ZJ Legend

ZJ Legend, a commercial centre in Zhangjiang Park,
provides total gross floor area of approximately 26,300
square meters for leasing purpose and an occupancy
rate of approximately 87.5% was recorded as at 31st
December, 2017. The income generated from the
commercial centre accounted for approximately 1.2%
of the turnover of SZMP for the year under review.
Food and beverage outlets are the principal tenants
of the commercial centre, occupying approximately
51.7% of the leased area while entertainment
businesses rank as the secondary tenants, taking up
approximately 27.6% of the leased area.

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

ZJ Legend
RIEE

In addition, SZMP owns a land bank in Zhangjiang
Park for development of phase 2 of the commercial
centre. According to the revision of the zoning plan
of north western district of Zhangjiang Park approved
by the government of Pudong New Area in 2017,
SZMP applied for and has been granted permission
for revision of the development plan of phase 2. Under
the proposed revision to the development plan, phase
2 will be developed as a composite project for office,
commercial and cultural purposes with total gross
floor area of approximately 60,900 square meters
subject to payment of additional land premium. SZMP
is negotiating with the planning and land authorities in
order to expedite preparation works.

Securities Trading and Investment

The Group has invested in various listed securities
in Hong Kong for trading and long-term investment
purposes. Securities trading and investment was
the principal source of both gross proceeds from
operations and operating profit of the Group for the
year under review.

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JI|JAI 5 [E B R 2 &)
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Held-for-trading Investments

All trading securities investments of the Group
were listed in Hong Kong. During the year 2017,
revenue derived from the securities investments held
for trading accounted for approximately 37.0% of
the Group’s gross proceeds from operations. The
revenue was attributable to gross proceeds from
disposal of HK$48,970,000 and dividend receipts
of HK$2,858,000. Hence, a total realized gain of
HK$9,114,000 was generated. After taking account
of an unrealized loss on changes in fair value of
HK$1,726,000 in accordance with applicable
accounting standards, a net gain in trading securities
investments of HK$7,388,000 was recorded for the
year under review (2016: HK$101,220,000).

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group had securities
investments held for trading of an aggregate fair value
of HK$57,287,000, representing approximately 1.8% of
the Group’s total assets and there were no individual
securities investments with fair value representing 1%
or more of the Group’s total assets.

An analysis of the performance of the trading securities
investments of the Group during the year under review
by industry classification is set out below:

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT
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As at 31st December, 2017 For the year ended 31st December, 2017

R=F—t5+=-A=+—H

BE_Z-—tF+-A=1+—HLFE

Percentage
of total
assets of Realized Unrealized
Fair value the Group gain gain Net gain
Industry EEAEE
Classification TEPE AYE BEEASL CERKE XERWSF Wz FE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TERT FERT FTERT FERT
Real estate EHERSE
investment trust  E:EE S 23,059 0.7% 1,748 270 2,018
Financials — Banks & gt % — R 17T 12,583 0.4% 490 386 876
Conglomerates e 21,645 0.7% 2,129 (2,382) (253)
Utilities NEESS N/A A~ B N/A i F 3,610 N/A A3 B 3,610
Properties and MERERE
construction N/A 4~ B N/A i F 1,137 N/AT&EH 1,137
57,287 1.8% 9,114 (1,726) 7,388
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT

Available-for-sale Investments

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group held a
11.7% interest in the total issued shares of Tomson
Group Limited (“TGL”), as a long-term investment
and the fair value of such investment amounted to
HK$733,165,000, representing approximately 23.5%
of the Group’s total assets. TGL is a listed company
in Hong Kong and is principally engaged in property
development and investment as well as hospitality
and leisure business in the Mainland. The Group
received an interim dividend from TGL for 2016
of HK$86,000,000 (2016: HK$38,220,000), which
accounted for approximately 61.4% of the Group’s
gross proceeds from operations for the year under
review. In addition, an unrealized gain on change
in fair value of the securities investment in TGL of
HK$147,434,000 was credited to the investment
revaluation reserve of the Group as at 31st December,
2017 in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards. It is expected that the securities investment
in TGL will provide a steady dividend income and
potential capital appreciation in the future.

In addition, Boulevard Real Estate has formed a
wholly-owned subsidiary in Shanghai with a registered
capital of RMB50 million to engage in investment
management. As at the end of the year under review,
the subsidiary held unlisted equity investments of
HK$43,791,000, representing approximately 1.4% of
the Group’s total assets, as long-term investments. The
investments were made in 2016 and no profit has been
generated during the year under review.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity, Financing and Profitability

There was no change in the Group’s capital structure
during the year ended 31st December, 2017 and the
Group’s operations and investments for the year under
review were mainly funded by its cash on hand and
revenue from investing activities.

As at 31st December, 2017, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group amounted to HK$1,218,731,000.
During the year under review, the Group generated a cash
inflow of HK$210,151,000 from its investing activities. After
taking into account a net cash outflow of HK$30,401,000
from its operation activities and the Company’s dividend
payment of HK$130,427,000, the net cash inflow of the
Group for the year ended 31st December, 2017 amounted
to HK$49,323,000 (2016: HK$466,826,000). The increase

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JI|JAI 5 [E B R 2 &)

AHHERE

RZE—+tF+_A=+—H XEEEFEEFS
EEBEERAR(SEEE]) 22 BB BITHR
BRI 7%ER  WEA—BRBRERZIKE
2 NF{EA733,165,0008 70 AR EBEEE
#235% - SEEEA—REBLTMRARREER
mmmm%&r@%%@&&éu& NSl

$$@J‘IQHXT/%E%@Z_ — NEFE R
Hﬁ%%ooooooﬁ%m( T — X4 1 38,220,000
BIL) EAEBNRREBEFE 2SS WS BELY
61.4% ° o R—ZZT—+F+-_A=+—H "
BA@E%IZ EARBEZRAFEEMELEZR
147,434,000 T iR 15 3@ F & 51 2E Bl 5
AZIS%lZ#xé@H%{%W %EB:W@—JEEIZ

EHREHRARRIEBER B MAREEE A
1 -
WS REBEER DETRT K2 ANE D

Al (FEf & A B AR #50,000,0007T) LA E/RE
BEER REBEFER ZMWBARBAEIEL
MR A% E43,791,0008 T (G AEEBEEN
14%)EAERIRE - ZEREVR T —XF
EH  REEFEALRELERF -

Bt %5 [0 R
RBEST WMERBNEED

AEERBZE T —tF+t _A=1+T—HLFE
ZERR T%I,Eﬁ@j MASEREEEE 2 &
BREBLREMFESTIERETFEREULRK
BEBZBA -

RZE—tF+-_A=+—H AEEZRS
FE4SSEER A1,218,731,000%8 7T » KA [
BEERN ASEEHEHREEBELERESRA
%Ezm 151,000 7T ° Lat MK L X B ELER
& JF 530,401,000 T KA QA BR R B
130,427,000 7T1% Zkﬁl@zi_? t¢+_
A=1+—HLHFE 7R KA FEEEH49,323,000
BT (ZF— /N4 £ 466,826,000087T) - —E—+
FAZHRSHEREMNDEZREAER 2B E QD



in cash balance in 2017 was mainly attributable to
receipt of dividends from SZMP, an associate of the
Group, and TGL, a long-term securities investment of
the Group.

The Group had no borrowing as at the end of the
reporting period (2016: Nil). Of the liabilities of the
Group, approximately 80.3% were payable within
one year from the end of the reporting period while
the balance was deferred tax liabilities related to
undistributed earnings of SZMP, the Group’s associate.

In addition, the Group had no capital commitment
in respect of expenditure on property development
which had been contracted for but not provided in the
financial statements for 2017 (2016: Nil).

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group recorded a
current ratio of 10.09 times (2016: 10.13 times) and a
gearing ratio (being total liabilities to equity attributable
to owners of the Company) of 5.5% (2016: 6.8%).
There was no significant change in the current ratio
while the slight improvement in the gearing ratio was
mainly attributable to a reduction of withholding tax
liabilities of SZMP, the Group’s associate.

For the year under review, the Group reported a
return on equity (net profit to the average equity both
attributable to owners of the Company) of 10.2%
(2016: 12.7%) owing to a drop in the profit.

Charge on Assets

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at
31st December, 2017 (2016: Nil).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi, and the liabilities are well
covered by the assets. Recent changes in value
of Renminbi may not have any material adverse
impact on the Group’s results and net asset value. In
addition, all of the other assets and liabilities of the
Group are denominated in either Hong Kong Dollar or
Macau Pataca. Hence, the Group anticipates that the
exchange risk exposure is manageable.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31st
December, 2017 (2016: Nil).

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial situation, operation results
and business prospects may be directly or indirectly
affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
including business risks, operational risks, financial
risks and changes of local laws and regulations in
the jurisdictions in which it operates. Information on
the estimation uncertainty, capital risk management
and financial risk management is respectively set out
in Notes 4, 5 and 6(b) to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year under review
on pages 89 to 95. Currency risk to the cash and
bank balances denominated in Renminbi and equity
price risk exposed to the listed equity investments are
considered to be the principal factors affecting the
Group’s operation results and financial situation. The
management will continue to monitor foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging arrangement
should the need arise. It will also maintain the Group’s
securities trading and investment portfolio with different
risks and closely monitor the price changes.

PROSPECTS

The Group will keep property development and
investment as well as securities trading and investment
as its principal operating activities.

Residential properties for the middle-class and
commercial-cum-office properties in the Mainland
are the target business segments of the Group. It
is anticipated that the property development and
investment business of SZMP, the Group’s associate,
will remain the major profit contributor of the Group in
2018 despite a possible drop in its revenue which will
principally come from rental income.

It is expected that the global and Hong Kong financial
markets will become relatively uncertain in 2018 with
the ending of quantitative easing and possible rise in
interest rates. The management will closely monitor
market conditions and will remain cautious in managing
the Group’s securities trading and investment portfolio
so as to maximize its return to the shareholders.
The Group will seek out appropriate opportunities to
expand its investment portfolio and will also focus
on investment in high-yield listed securities for stable
recurrent income and long-term capital appreciation.
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The Macau government announced in December
2013 revised planning directives under the “Urban
redevelopment programme of the Northern District
of Taipa Area” which covers the area in which the
investment property of the Group is located. The
Group will continue to explore and evaluate various
feasibility plans for its investment property to realize its
development potential at an opportune time.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group engaged 4 salaried directors and
employees in its various offices in Hong Kong,
Macau and Shanghai as at 31st December, 2017.
The total emoluments of the Group for the year
under review amounted to HK$3,538,000 including
retirement benefits scheme contributions and
directors’ emoluments. In addition, the Group shared
administrative resources with a core connected person
in Hong Kong on a cost basis and details are shown in
Note 23(b) to the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year under review on page 116.

The Group has always emphasized the importance
of a highly-efficient staff management and incentive
structure. Emoluments paid to salaried staff and
directors of the Group are determined by reference
to market terms, individual responsibilities and
performance. Discretionary bonus may be paid based
on individual contribution. Furthermore, the Company
has adopted a share option scheme pursuant to which
directors and employees of the Group may be granted
options to subscribe for shares of the Company as a
long-term incentive.

The Company would like to express its appreciation
to Mr Ge Peijian, who resigned as non-executive
Director of the Company in December 2017, for his
contribution to the Company during his tenure of office.
The Company also welcomes Madam Liu Ying to join
the Board as a non-executive Director and to act as the
Chairman of the Board.

Taking this opportunity, the Board would like to
express its gratitude to all the staff members of the
Group for their loyalty and diligence over the years.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Ying
Non-Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 16th March, 2018
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Corporate Governance Report

CHEREE

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standards and procedures which emphasize management
of high quality, transparency and accountability to all
shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and complied with
the code provisions contained therein during the year
2017 and up to the date of this Report, except that:

(@) in contrast to Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code,
the non-executive Directors (whether independent or
not) of the Company are not appointed for a specific
term. However, they are subject to retirement and
re-election at least once every three years at annual
general meetings of the Company pursuant to the
Articles of Association of the Company;

(b) in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company, any Director of the Company
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company instead of being
subject to election at the first general meeting
of the Company after his/her appointment as
stipulated in Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG
Code. Such arrangement not only complies
with Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules but also
streamlines the mechanism of re-election of
Directors so that both new Directors appointed
by the Board (either for filling a casual vacancy or
as an additional member) and existing Directors
retiring by rotation shall be subject to re-election
at the annual general meeting for the relevant year.
Furthermore, general meetings other than annual
general meetings will be reserved for considering
and approving notifiable/connected transactions
or other corporate actions under the Listing
Rules only, which should enhance efficiency in
procedures for corporate matters;
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(c) the Company has not established a nomination
committee comprising a majority of independent
non-executive Directors pursuant to Code
Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code. This is because
when identifying individuals of appropriate calibre
and qualification to be Board members and when
assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, it is necessary to have a
thorough understanding of the structure, business
strategy and daily operation of the Company. The
participation of executive Directors during the
process is therefore indispensable. Accordingly,
the Board as a whole remains responsible for
reviewing its own structure, size and composition
annually, and also for considering the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors as well as
assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and

(d) the Company Secretary has day-to-day involvement
and knowledge of the Company’s affairs though
the incumbent was not an employee of the
Company as stipulated in Code Provision F.1.1 of
the CG Code. She has been in the employment
with the Company since March 2018 in order to
comply with the CG Code.

THE BOARD

The Board will always act in the best interests of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
as well as the shareholders. It is accountable to the
shareholders for the long-term performance of the
Group, while taking into consideration the interests of
other stakeholders.

As at the date of this Report, the Board is composed
of nine members, including a non-executive Chairman,
Madam Liu Ying; four executive Directors, Madam Hsu
Feng, Mr Albert Tong, Mr Wang Fahua and Madam Fan
Suxia; one non-executive Director, Mr Sung Tze-Chun;
and three independent non-executive Directors,
Mr Liang Jung-chi, Mr Zhang Hong Bin and Mr Sit
Hing Kwok. All the Directors have signed letters of
appointment with the Company which set out the key
terms and conditions of their appointment. Biographical
details of the Directors and relevant relationships
among them together with their respective roles in the
Board and its committees are set out in the Profile of
the Directors and Officers on pages 31 to 35.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company recognizes that a diverse board is
crucial to the Board’s performance and development
of the Company. The Board has adopted a board
diversity policy which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. It believes that diversity should
be viewed from its widest perspective. Accordingly,
selection of candidates to the Board is based on a
range of measurable objectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience and qualifications,
skills, knowledge and length of service, having due
regard to the Company’s own business model and
specific needs from time to time. During the year under
review, the Board has conducted an annual review of
its structure and composition at a regular meeting. With
the Board members coming from a variety of business
and professional background and one-third of the
Board members being female, the Company considers
that the Board possesses a diverse mix of skKills,
experience and expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business and development. Over a half of the Board
members are non-executive and it is considered that
there is a balanced structure and composition of the
Board.

The independent non-executive Directors of the
Company represent one-third of the Board and one
of them has the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications as required by the Listing Rules. The
Company has received an annual written confirmation
for the year 2017 from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

The Directors of the Company have disclosed to the
Company the offices held in other public companies or
organisations and the time involved and the Company
has received confirmations from each Director that
he/she has devoted sufficient time to perform his/her
responsibilities as a Director of the Company and has
given sufficient attention to the affairs of the Company.
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The Board, led by the Chairman, has reserved for its
decision or consideration matters covering formulation
of corporate strategy, approval of annual and interim
results, changes of members of the Board and its
committees, major acquisitions, disposals and capital
transactions, and other significant operational and
financial matters. The non-executive Directors have
contributed valuable independent views and proposals
for the Board’s deliberation and decisions. The Board
has established an executive committee, an audit
committee and a remuneration committee (collectively
the “Committees”) with clear written terms of reference
to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs
and to assist in sharing the Board’s responsibilities.
The Committees have to report regularly to the Board
on their decisions and recommendations.

The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Group are delegated to the management,
who provides support to the Board in the setting of
overall strategic direction, long-term objectives and
business plans of the Group. Both the Board and
the management have clearly defined authorities
and responsibilities under various risk management,
internal control and check-and-balance mechanisms.
The management is responsible for implementing the
strategies and plans adopted by the Board and the
Committees and assumes full accountability to the
Board for the operation of the Group.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year and
as and when required. All Directors are consulted
as to whether to include any matters in the agenda.
Sufficient notices are given to all Directors at least 14
days before the regular Board meetings and agenda
together with accompanying board papers are given
to all Directors in a timely manner before the day
of meeting. Drafts and final versions of minutes are
circulated to the Directors for comment and record
respectively. During the year 2017, four regular Board
meetings were held. Besides, the then non-executive
Chairman of the Board had an annual meeting in 2017
for exchange of opinions with all the non-executive
Directors (including the independent ones) of the
Company without the executive Directors present.

All members of the Board have been provided with
monthly management updates to keep them up-to-date
with material developments of the Group’s operations,
performance, financial position and prospects. The
Board has agreed on a procedure to enable the
Directors to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense,
to assist them to perform their duties.
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability
insurance to indemnify its Directors for their liabilities
arising out of the discharge of their duties. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Company strives to attain and maintain high
standards of corporate governance best suited to the
needs and interests of the Group. Good corporate
governance is crucial to an orderly and effective
operational system, which will enhance operational
efficiencies, thereby bolstering shareholders’ value.
The Board is responsible for the corporate governance
functions. During the year ended 31st December,
2017, the Board has discharged the following
corporate governance duties:

(@) review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b) arrange seminars and briefings to Directors,
review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors, details
of which are set out in the paragraph headed
“Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development” in this Report;

(c) review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, including reviewing the provisions of
the codes on risk management and internal control
of the Group and shareholders’ communication

policy;

(d) review, monitor and revise as appropriate the
Company’s code of practice for securities transactions
by the Directors and relevant employees (the “Code of
Practice for Securities Transactions”) and guidelines
on arrangements for raising concerns about
improprieties; and

(e) review the Company’s compliance with the code

provisions of the CG Code and relevant disclosure
in interim and annual reports.
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Executive Committee

The Company has not appointed a chief executive but
the Board has established an executive committee (the
“Executive Committee”) with written terms of reference
since August 2005 and the Chairman of the Board
does not act as a member. There is a segregation
of duties between the Chairman of the Board for
leadership and management of the Board and the
Executive Committee which may convene meetings as
it considers necessary for dealing with the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business.

The Executive Committee is composed of four
executive Directors of the Company, namely Madam
Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong, Mr Wang Fahua and Madam
Fan Suxia. Madam Hsu Feng is the chairman of the
Executive Committee.

Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established by the Board in March
2012 with specific written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’s website. As at the date
of this Report, Mr Liang Jung-chi, Mr Zhang Hong
Bin and Mr Sit Hing Kwok, being all the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company, and Mr Sung
Tze-Chun, a non-executive Director of the Company,
are members of the Remuneration Committee. Mr Sit
Hing Kwok is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The principal duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration,
to determine the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management of the
Company and to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive Directors of the
Company. The remuneration of any member of the
Remuneration Committee shall be determined by the
Board.

During the year 2017, the Remuneration Committee
approved by means of written resolutions the
adjustments to remuneration packages of certain
executive Directors of the Company and held a meeting
for an annual review of the remuneration policy and
packages for all the Directors and senior management
of the Company. Details of the emoluments paid to the
Directors and senior management of the Company for
the year ended 31st December, 2017 are set out in
Note 12(a) to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 105 and 106.
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Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was
established in April 1999 by the Board with specific
written terms of reference. As at the date of this
Report, the Audit Committee is composed of all the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company,
namely Mr Liang Jung-chi, Mr Zhang Hong Bin and
Mr Sit Hing Kwok. Mr Zhang Hong Bin who possesses
appropriate professional accounting qualifications as
required by the Listing Rules is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is
required to review the Company’s financial information,
to monitor integrity of the financial statements of the
Company, to review the Company’s financial controls
as well as the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems and to oversee the relationship with
the Company’s auditor (the “Auditor”). The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website.

During the year 2017, in accordance with its terms of
reference and under the authorization of the Board,
the Audit Committee held three meetings for reviewing
the interim and annual financial statements as well as
the financial reporting matters of the Group, evaluating
the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and the significant risks faced by the
Group, reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness and
resource adequacy of internal audit function of the
Company, considering the engagement and scope of
services of the Auditor and reviewing arrangements for
raising concerns about improprieties.

The Audit Committee concluded that in 2017 the
risk management and internal control systems of the
Group were effective and the internal audit function
of the Company was implemented effectively. The
Audit Committee was satisfied with related resources
of the internal audit function and the resources,
staff qualifications and experience, and training
programmes and related budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function as well as
the implementation, application and effectiveness of
the policy on arrangements for raising concerns about
improprieties.

In March 2018, the Audit Committee held two meetings
to review the consolidated financial statements and the
internal audit report of the Group for 2017 respectively.
It recommended the Board to approve the said
financial statements and to review the internal audit
report. It also recommended the Board to propose the
re-appointment of the Auditor at the annual general
meeting of the Company for 2018.
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Attendance Records at Meetings

The attendance of individual Directors at general
meeting, regular meetings of the Board and meetings
of the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee
held during the year ended 31st December, 2017 is set

out below:
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EEWHFELR
FREERBE—F—tF+-A=+—HAIF

EARARTZERRREG EFZRTHSE  UEH
MEEENBERZBERFZZHFEXRINEMT

Number of meetings attended/held

BHE/ETHEENA
General Remuneration Audit
Meeting Board Committee Committee
Name of Directors EEi? KRAg EZR §WzEe EREEE
Non-Executive Chairman FHTEE
Madam Liu Ying 8 Bxt NiA R NIA F i A NIA TR NIA TR
(Chairman of the Board) (EZEZE)
(appointad as Director (R-F—+F1=ANA
on 9h December, 2017 and BZAREER
elected as Chairman of the Board RZE-NE-H/1A
on 8ih January, 2018) BREREERLE)
Resigned Non-Executive Chairman BEERTER
Mr Ge Peijian BREELE 11 4/4 N/A TEHE N/A TNER
(former Chairman of the Board) (HHEEETE)
(resigned on 9ih December, 2017) (R-F—+%F
T=ANAFE)
Executive Directors BTEE
Madam Hsu Feng # xt 17 4/4 N/A T NA TR
Mr Albert Tong mTREE 17 4/4 N/A T N/A T
Mr Wang Fahua TEERE 17 4/4 N/A T N/A T
Madam Fan Suxia BPEENTL 1/1 4/4 N/A N EF N/A N E R
Non-Executive Director FUTES
Mr Sung Tze-Chun ROE LA 11 4/4 17 N/A T
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr Liang Jung-chi RRERE 11 4/4 11 3/3
Mr Zhang Hong Bin ERMEE 1/ 4/4 11 3/3
(Chairman of Audit Committee) (BRERBTE)
Mr Sit Hing Kwok BRALL 11 3/4 11 3/3
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee) — (5B{Z5 22 /%)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors ZEEEZZTMER

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, new Directors could be elected by the
Company or appointed by the Board. Any Director so
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company
and the retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

REARARB Z(RBIABMBRRARD ZRE - #FE
EAHARAIEESREERZ T -EWHES
REEZES HEHSEEARF T —ERR
BFEKREGIL - REEFAIFEEME -
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The Company did not establish a nomination
committee pursuant to the code provisions of the CG
Code and the Board is responsible for reviewing its
own structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience of its members), and
identifying, selecting and considering any appointment
or re-appointment of its own members. The Board is
also responsible for assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

Mr Albert Tong, Mr Sit Hing Kwok and Madam Fan
Suxia retired by rotation and were re-elected at the
Company’s annual general meeting for 2017.

At a regular Board meeting held in December 2017,
the Board resolved to accept the resignation of Mr Ge
Peijian as a non-executive Director and his cessation
of being the Chairman of the Board, and approved the
appointment of Madam Liu Ying as a non-executive
Director of the Company. In addition, the Board
resolved to elect Madam Liu Ying as the Chairman of
the Board in January 2018.

An annual review of the Board structure and composition
was made by the Board during the year under review
and the Board resolved to keep the structure and
composition of the Board unchanged.

In addition, Madam Liu Ying, Madam Hsu Feng and
Mr Liang Jung-chi will retire at the Company’s annual
general meeting for 2018 in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company. Madam Liu
and Madam Hsu offer themselves for re-election at that
general meeting. Mr Liang has informed the Company
that he will not seek re-election.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND
CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

On appointment to the Board, each of the new
Directors of the Company is given a comprehensive
orientation package, including the latest information
of the Group, induction into their responsibilities and
duties, terms of reference of the relevant Committees
and other related regulatory requirements.
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Throughout the course of their directorship, to keep
them abreast of the latest developments in the
legislative or regulatory environment, the Directors are
regularly provided with updates and briefings on the
Listing Rules and other applicable legal and regulatory
requirements. Circulars or guidance notes issued by
various regulatory authorities or organizations, where
appropriate, are given to the Directors for reading and
reference.

In order to assist the Directors to participate in
continuous professional development, the Company
encourages the Directors to enroll in a wide range of
professional development seminars and conferences.
During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the
Company organized four in-house seminars on areas
of economic development, taxation and corporate
governance so as to help the Directors refresh their
knowledge and skills.

A summary of the continuous professional development
in which the Directors participated during the year
ended 31st December, 2017 is as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBME

ERECEZRHR AESESZEENEZEIRE
RENGNER EFEEHRMCETRID K
HMER O ZRRREBRZEMER KB
B EEE#IE ARSI 2B REkE 5| (E
ReR’TESARRSE -

STHHEZLEREEXRER  ARRHEE
ERB 2 MR AL A F X3RS I 8 E R
HE - RBE-_ZT—tF+_A=1T—HLFE
W ARAER/EZERNRAMLEIN - ARE
AEERR BBELEXRER UHPHSESE
I L A28 Ko e

REBEE-_ZT—tF+_A=t—HIFE &=F

FI2EMmEEXERBENT

Continuous Professional
Development

BEEXERE

Type Subject
Name of Directors EspE EE ES-|
Non-Executive Chairman FBITERE
Madam Liu Ying 2 Bzt 1,2 A, B

(appointed on 9th December, 2017) (R=ZFE—+F+ZHNLHEZF)
Resigned Non-Executive Chairman BEHBITERE
Mr Ge Peijian BiEfkaE 1,2 A B
(resigned on 9th December, 2017) (RZB—+F+ZHANBEFEF)

Executive Directors BITES
Madam Hsu Feng R =L 1,2 A, B
Mr Albert Tong & FREE 1,2 A B
Mr Wang Fahua TERERSE 1,2 A, B
Madam Fan Suxia BREXTL 1,2 A, B
Non-Executive Director FHITESE
Mr Sung Tze-Chun RIUE kA& 1,2 A, B
Independent Non-Executive Directors B MY HTESE
Mr Liang Jung-chi REEESEE 1,2 A B
Mr Zhang Hong Bin B 1,2 A B
Mr Sit Hing Kwok B S & 1,2 A B
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Types:

1. Attending in-house briefings/training, seminars,
conference or forums

2: Reading relevant information and updates
Subjects:
A:  Subjects relevant to the businesses of the Group

B: Legal, regulatory, finance and general management
updates

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own Code of Practice
for Securities Transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”).

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors of the
Company in office during the year under review, each
of the Directors has confirmed compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the
Code of Practice for Securities Transactions throughout
the year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring
that proper risk management and internal control
systems are maintained within the Group and for
overseeing the effectiveness of these systems in
order to safeguard the shareholders’ investments
and the Group’s assets against misappropriation and
to manage the operational risks. The Company has
adopted its own codes for itself and its subsidiaries
in respect of all material internal controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions since 2005. The codes on risk
management and internal control are reviewed regularly
and modified pursuant to operational requirements of
the Group.

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JI|JAI 5 [E B R 2 &)

B

1 HEABE®RE EY - B WIS dwE

2 BEAMENMLKEHREH

F&E -

A BASEXBAEBOETE

B: AR HRE MBER-—MREEZEHEH

EEETESFRS

ARRERACERZ B TR > MR 578
ZAEX W AFERCETRRD K s+ Pr# 2 (L™
BTAEFETREFIZNEEST D ([UREST
A1) 2 MEFRLE -

ARREARBEFERNEEZMBEESRFLEE
W FEFTHUOHRARNFEARST —HETH
RCREEST R R 5 57 ]I WARTE 2R

BERIE:
EEEERAER

EERAREAEIRRASEEREE 2R R
EENMABEERGALERZFTRG AR
HUARBERRZBRERAEBZEETERIE
MAMBATELERR - ARFBE_TTREF
ERARBIREMBABIRME - 2& ARE
EXTEANFEETEMARERINERA T H
ZA 4 D U NI S R S-S Ao =i 2
AN EMELRE RIEAKENEHEFT EE

ICHIE



The risk management and internal control systems are
intended to manage, not eliminate, significant risks
of failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives,
so they can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
operating units of the Group, as the risk owners, go
through the following processes on an ongoing basis
and report results to the management:

() identify their own significant risks in the Group’s
operation environment and evaluate the impacts of
those risks on the Group’s business and financial
position;

(i) develop necessary measures to manage those
risks; and

(i) monitor and review the effectiveness of such
measures.

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination
of inside information as set out in the codes on risk
management and internal control to ensure inside
information remains confidential until the disclosure
of such information and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made.

An external service provider has been engaged for
providing internal audit services to the Group during the
year under review.

The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to
review the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group at least once a
year and the Audit Committee held a meeting in 2017
for that purpose. The Board, through the review of
the Audit Committee, considers that the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are effective
and adequate and the Group has complied with the
provisions on risk management and internal control as
set out in the CG Code and the Group’s codes on risk
management and internal control during the year ended
31st December, 2017.

The Board also considers that, after a review made by
the Audit Committee, the internal audit function was
effectively implemented and adequately resourced
with experienced external service provider in 2017
and that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and related budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
functions are adequate.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company acknowledge that
they are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for each financial period. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31st December, 2017, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; have made judgments and estimates that
were prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

The responsibilities of the Auditor to the shareholders
are to form an independent opinion, based on the
audit, on those consolidated financial statements and
their opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2017
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
54 to 59.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group by the Auditor for the year
ended 31st December, 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$1,088,000 and HK$48,000 respectively. The
non-audit services provided during the year were
taxation services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company has day-to-day
involvement and knowledge of the Company’s affairs.
The Company Secretary supports the Board by
ensuring board procedures are followed and board
proceedings are efficiently and effectively conducted.
She is also responsible for apprising the Board of
all applicable law, rules, regulations and corporate
governance developments. During the year under
review, the Company Secretary has taken relevant
professional training as required under the Listing
Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the
Company’s shareholders through various channels
including the Company’s annual general meetings.
In 2017, all the Board members for the time being
including, inter-alia, the then Chairman of the Board
and the chairmen of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, attended the annual general
meeting of the Company to answer questions from
the shareholders. Representatives of the Auditor also
attended that meeting to answer questions about the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2016.

In order to further enhance communication with
the shareholders of the Company and enable the
Company’s shareholders to have timely and updated
information of the Group, the Company has set up
its own website at http://www.rivera.com.hk where
corporate information, interim and annual reports,
environmental, social and governance reports,
announcements, circulars, business development and
other information of the Company are posted.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Calling a General Meeting

Shareholders of the Company holding at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the shareholders having
a right to vote at general meetings of the Company
may request the Board to call a general meeting.
The request (a) must contain the name(s) of the
requisitionist(s), their contact details and number of
shares of the Company held by them; (b) must state
the general nature of the business to be dealt with
at the general meeting; (c) must be signed by the
requisitionist(s); (d) must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company at Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12,
15th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong (the “Registered Office”) for the
attention of the Company Secretary of the Company;
and (e) if a special resolution is to be proposed at the
general meeting, must include the text of the resolution
and specify the intention to propose the resolution as a
special resolution.
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The Directors must proceed to call a general meeting
within 21 days after the date of receipt of a valid
request (which has been duly verified by the share
registrar of the Company). If the Board does not duly
call a general meeting that must be held within 28 days
after the date of the notice convening the meeting, the
requisitionist(s) or any of them representing more than
one-half of their total voting rights may themselves call
a general meeting which shall be held within 3 months
after the date of deposit of the request.

Putting Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

(@) Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders of the
Company having a relevant right to vote, or at
least 50 shareholders of the Company having the
relevant voting rights may:

() propose a resolution at an annual general
meeting at least 6 weeks before such meeting
or no later than the time at which the notice of
the meeting is given; or

(i) request the Company to circulate, to the
shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of a general meeting, a statement of
not exceeding 1,000 words for either a matter
mentioned in a proposed resolution (if they
are entitled to vote on that resolution) or other
business to be dealt with at that meeting at
least 7 days before the meeting.

The duly signed request shall be deposited at the
Registered Office for the attention of the Company
Secretary of the Company within the above
prescribed timeline.

(b) The procedures for nomination of Directors by the

shareholders of the Company are available on the
Company’s website at http://www.rivera.com.hk.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders can direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the share registrar of the Company,
Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

To the extent that such information can be made
available to the public, shareholders may at any
time put forward enquiries to the Board through the
Company Secretary in writing by mail to the Registered
Office or by e-mail to ir@rivera.com.hk.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the constitutional documents
of the Company during the year ended 31st December,
2017 and up to the date of this Report.

CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

The Group pledges itself to contribute to the well-being
of the society. During the year under review, the Group
made charitable donations to international charitable
organizations, namely World Wide Fund for Nature
Hong Kong and Médecins Sans Frontieres, to support
their activities in saving endangered animals and
their habitat and conservation and education work in
Hong Kong, and their provision of emergency medical
assistance respectively.

Hong Kong, 16th March, 2018
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Profile of the Directors and Officers

EENERITHRAEEN
NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

Madam Liu Ying, aged 44, has been appointed
a non-executive Director of the Company since
December 2017 and has been elected as Chairman of
the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
since January 2018.

Madam Liu holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree and a postgraduate degree
in Finance and qualified as a Senior Economist in
the Mainland. During the period from July 2005
to November 2012, she took up the posts of
vice president and president of Suzhou Harmony
Development Group Co. Ltd. successively. She acted
as the president of Suzhou Sungent Holding Group
Co. Ltd. during the period from November 2012 to
June 20183. During the period from June 2013 to July
2015, she took up the posts of secretary of the party
committee, chairman of the board and president of
Suzhou Industrial Park Trirun Investment Holding Group
Co., Ltd.. In addition, during the period from July 2015
to October 2017, she acted as the general manager of
Shanghai Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone Group Co., Ltd.
(BB S BEER DGR AR (formerly known as )&
INSBRIEMER D AR AR, a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and during the period
from September 2015 to October 2017, she also acted
as deputy secretary of the party committee, director,
and member of the nomination committee and strategic
committee under the board of that company.

Madam Liu has acted as the deputy secretary of
the party committee and the general manager of
Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park Development
Co., Ltd. (“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and a substantial
shareholder of the Company, since October 2017.
She was elected as director and the vice chairman of
the board of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech and was appointed
as legal representative of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech in
December 2017. Mr Wang Fahua, an executive
director of the Company, is the general manager of
Investment Department of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech. Madam
Fan Suxia, an executive director of the Company, is a
non-executive manager of a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Hsu Feng, aged 67, has been appointed a
Director of the Company since January 1990 and the
chairman of the Executive Committee of the Board
since August 2005. She is now an executive Director
of the Company and has been appointed a director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Company since
December 2003. She has over 10 years’ experience
in film production, and in property development and
investment as well as retail industry in Taiwan, and has
been engaged in the property development, hospitality
and leisure business in the Mainland for over 20 years.
She is also the Honorary Consul of the Principality of
Monaco in Shanghai.

Madam Hsu is the mother of Mr Albert Tong, an
executive Director and a shareholder of the Company,
and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, a shareholder of the
Company. All of them act as executive directors of
Tomson Group Limited (“TGL”), a listed company in
Hong Kong and a shareholder of the Company having
a notifiable interest under Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”). Madam Hsu is
also the chairman, managing director and substantial
shareholder of TGL.

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, pursuant
to the SFO, Madam Hsu had a personal interest in
317,178,162 issued shares of the Company.

Mr Albert Tong, aged 35, has been appointed an
executive Director of the Company and a director of
a number of its subsidiaries since March 2001. He
has also been appointed a member of the Executive
Committee of the Board since August 2005. He
has actively participated in business development,
corporate management, property trading and securities
investment for years.

He is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, an executive Director
and a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and a younger brother of Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles,
a shareholder of the Company, and all of them
act as executive directors of TGL. He is also the
vice-chairman and substantial shareholder of TGL.

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, pursuant
to the SFO, Mr Albert Tong had a personal interest in
103,210,000 issued shares of the Company.
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Mr Wang Fahua, aged 55, has been appointed an
executive Director of the Company and a member of
the Executive Committee of the Board since May 2015.

He holds a Master of Polymer Chemistry degree.
During the period from October 1994 to September
2004, he took up the post of assistant to general
manager of EBMKIGHMRMEZREEL A AQA
(Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Real Estate Park Import
and Export Company). He joined Zhangjiang Hi-Tech in
October 2004 and took up principal posts in Strategic
Planning Department and Investment & Security
Management Department of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech during
the years. He has served in Investment Department
of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech since March 2015 and was
promoted to general manager of the department in
February 2016.

In addition to being a staff of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech,
Mr Wang is a minority shareholder of Zhangjiang
Hi-Tech and a director of Best Central Developments
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhangjiang
Hi-Tech and a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Madam Liu Ying, the non-executive Chairman of the
Board, is the vice chairman of the board, deputy
secretary of the party committee, general manager and
legal representative of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech, and Madam
Fan Suxia, an executive Director of the Company, is a
non-executive manager of a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.

Madam Fan Suxia, aged 46, has been appointed an
executive Director of the Company and a member of
the Executive Committee of the Board since November
2014.

She holds a bachelor’s degree in financial accounting,
a Master of Management degree in accounting and a
Master of Business Administration degree. She also
qualified as a Chief Accountant and Senior Accountant
in the Mainland. She joined Shanghai Pudong Road &
Bridge Construction Co., Ltd. (“Pudong Road Bridge”),
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, in
May 2005 and was principally responsible for financial
duties. She was promoted to manager of Financial
Department of Pudong Road Bridge in March 2012 and
resigned from her post in September 2014. She has
years of experience in financial management.

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JI|JAI 5 [E B R 2 &)

ERERE 55 BT AFRAREZAE
REARPZHATEERRITEZEG ZKE -

BEESD FILBELEMN - KB - AN FE+
AE-ZTNFNLAPHEEE BT RIS
MEXEEL O RBAKEENE - KR —_FTFTN
FHAMAFRIIERG - BERTIERG 2 Bt S
MERERBESEHHER AT —HF=
HERFITRMN ZEFRKESTEMER > AN =
T-RNE-ABRFHEZIF 2 AKE -

FEERSRBRIRG 2EEIN - TFAFKIIRGD
2 /NI& R K Best Central Developments Limited
(RIBMDZzZ2EMBRARAIRARGBIZEERR)
CEE-FNTEEREIFEIBLZITARIRK
MrBEESER  EZEEL  BEBEREERE
A REARBIRITEETBREL LT ARIBRGIE
T—RE2EMBARICIELCEERELRE -

BESExT 46 BT NFET-AEEZ
ERARBZATEETRATEEGZKE »

REFVBEAFNPLEN  SFA2RNER
SRETBLNIEHERELEMN - RIFEAM
MBI ESREHZER KR _FFThH
FhAMALBBREBEBERRODBRAA (15
BER]) (—FKRLEBESFRSM LM AR -
ITNEEMBIE YE-_T——F=AER
BER IV EMLBEERN T —OFNARIE -
REBZFZUHEEER -



Madam Fan has acted as a non-executive manager of
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech since
January 2018 while Madam Liu Ying, the non-executive
Chairman of the Board, is the vice chairman of the
board, deputy secretary of the party committee,
general manager and legal representative of Zhangjiang
Hi-Tech, and Mr Wang Fahua, an executive Director
of the Company, is the general manager of Investment
Department of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr Sung Tze-Chun, aged 67, has been appointed a
non-executive Director of the Company since January
2006 and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Board since March 2012. He was an executive
Director of the Company until December 20083.

He holds a Doctor of Business Administration degree
and is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Mr Sung has about 20 years’ experience in
retail, property development and marketing in Taiwan
and has about 25 years’ experience in financial analysis
and management. He has taken part in business
development, corporate management and property
development in the Mainland and Hong Kong and
has provided consultancy services on business and
investment management in Taiwan. He also acted
as the general consultant of the group operation
committee of Yungtay Engineering Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange) during
the period from September 2010 to February 2013
and a director of its subsidiary, 7KK (F l)ﬁﬁﬁ
7] (formerly known as S KKEHEREBRRDR),
during the period from September 2010 to July 2013.
Mr Sung is a consultant of TGL.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr Liang Jung-chi, aged 70, has been appointed
an independent non-executive Director of the
Company since February 1994, a member of the
Audit Committee of the Board since April 1999 and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board
since March 2012. He is a physician in Taiwan.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Liang has been
increased from HK$93,600 to HK$101,400 with effect
from 1st January, 2018, which was approved by the
Board, under the authorization of the shareholders at
the 2017 annual general meeting of the Company and
on recommendation of the Remuneration Committee
of the Board, with reference to his responsibilities and
prevailing market conditions.

Profile of the Directors and Officers

EERERITBRAEEN
BERETE-T—\F—ARMERTRAE T —
%iﬁm% A2 EREREAS MRS

EEZRIFIBLIARIBNZIAERRK &
ZREIER  AREREERRA  RARRIHT
EFTZEERERTRIBNERKRESZTRIAL
# o

FHITES

REEBRE 67 BT F—AREZF
BARRIZENTEST WE T ——F= At
BEITARAEERETZ2FMNEET 2KE - BE
BARBIZHITESTES _i%ﬁ_i‘f’:ﬁ]c’

REFIHMERBLE2U  WATEEFES Y
BREE RELHEENTE YEERET
SHETHRAAN - +H &R YEMBON
NREBTEAEBHN _TRHF &R - RERAM
MEBREXRHBHE CXEERYERRZT
EREREERFABRNEEEEARS - &

NTR-_ZE-—ZFNAE-_T—=F_ AHMEEL
KAKE I%Hx@ﬁﬁﬁ A(—HKREEBFFR

%ﬁﬁtmz A ZEELESEER MR
—ZEFNAZE _"—_itﬂ,ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁi\ﬁﬁﬁ
T—ﬂd( B (P B BRQE (AT S LK

Kagﬁ% SEERRBD ZEF -RELERSEE

Sl

BYFHTES

REEKE 705 B NWNEF - ARERE
BARBZBIIFNTES  FE—NLANAEFT
ABRKEFEERE N ZEREZEENE  YH—
T _F-_AREZAREZFRE T ZHFMNEZE
EXRE BREBZHEEL -

M-ZE—N\F—A— B REEZTHEZ2ESW
© B & F93,600/% 1% £101,400/ 7T » It Ty A
BEERBERERARAZ-ZE—LFEREE
FRELIRERZ2RBREERET Z2FWNEES
ZEZ WRERIBERBERTRAMEE

Annual Report 2017 FEEF

34



35

Profile of the Directors and Officers
BEERSRITHRAEREN

Mr Zhang Hong Bin, aged 44, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company
and the chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board
since April 2005, and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Board since March 2012.

Mr Zhang holds a bachelor’s degree in economics.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a member of The Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is also
a qualified lawyer in the Mainland. He is a financial
controller of a company engaged in property leasing
and management in the Mainland and has years of
experience in financial management.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Zhang has been
increased from HK$117,600 to HK$124,200 with effect
from 1st January, 2018, which was approved by the
Board, under the authorization of the shareholders at
the 2017 annual general meeting of the Company and
on recommendation of the Remuneration Committee
of the Board, with reference to his responsibilities and
prevailing market conditions.

Mr Sit Hing Kwok, aged 68, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company
and a member of the Audit Committee of the Board
since July 2007. He has also been appointed as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the Board
since March 2012.

Mr Sit has been engaged in supervisory positions
in journalism for over 20 years. From 1992 up to
September 2009, he was a director of United Daily
News Limited in Hong Kong. He was also a director of
the Hong Kong news bureau of the United Daily News
Group until September 2009. He is now a freelance
writer and has been a lecturer of the Department of
Journalism & Communication of Hong Kong Shue Yan
University since November 2009.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Sit has been increased
from HK$111,600 to HK$118,200 with effect from 1st
January, 2018, which was approved by the Board,
under the authorization of the shareholders at the
2017 annual general meeting of the Company and on
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee of
the Board, with reference to his responsibilities and
prevailing market conditions.
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OFFICERS

Ms Lee Yuen Han, aged 51, has been appointed
the Company Secretary of the Company since March
1998. She attained a bachelor’s degree in economics
and a master’'s degree in business studies, and is an
associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries.

Mr Kwok Sau King, aged 59, has been appointed the
Financial Controller of the Company since September
1999. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Report of the Directors

ESRHREE

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
pleased to present its Report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31st December, 2017 and the independent
Auditor’s report thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group during the year
were property development and investment as well as
securities trading and investment.

During the year under review, the Company acted as an
investment holding company while the principal activities
and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries
are listed under Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 124 to 126.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the performance and position of the
Group’s business for the year ended 31st December,
2017, an indication of the future development of the
Group’s business as well as an analysis of the Group’s
principal risks and uncertainties are set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 to
14. This discussion forms part of this Report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance as well as its compliance with laws
and regulations, and an account of the Group’s
relationships with its employees, customers and
suppliers are set out below in this Report.

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st
December, 2017 and the Group’s financial position
as at the end thereof are set out on pages 60 to 126.
An analysis by operating segments and geographical
location is set out in Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 97 to 102.

As at the date of this Report, the Board is not aware

of any important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the year under review.

DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2016:
Nil).
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The Board recommends payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.045 per share for the year ended 31st
December, 2017 (2016: HK$0.05 per share).

Subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, the record
date and time for entitlement to the proposed final
dividend for 2017 is Tuesday, 5th June, 2018 at 4:30
p.m.. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 5th June, 2018 for
registration.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
AND CLOSURE OF
REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is
scheduled for Thursday, 31st May, 2018 (the “2018
AGM”). For determining the shareholders’ entitlement
to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
28th May, 2018 to Thursday, 31st May, 2018, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be effected.

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2018
AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited,
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 25th May, 2018 for
registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Of the gross proceeds from operations and purchases
of the Group for the year under review, other than
the dividend income of HK$86,000,000 from an
available-for-sale investment, less than 30% was
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers respectively.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the
Group donated HK$10,000 for charitable causes.
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EZRHRESE

FIXED ASSETS

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the
Group neither added nor disposed of any assets but it
wrote off assets with an aggregate net book value of
HK$2,000 (2016: neither added nor disposed of nor
wrote off any assets).

Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the
year are shown in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements on page 109.

A schedule of the principal properties held by the
Group, for sale or investment purposes, is set out on
page 127.

BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES

There were no bank loans and other borrowings of the
Group as at 31st December, 2017.

No debentures of any class were issued by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, or were in issue, at
any time during the year.

None of interest expenses of the Group were capitalized
during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31st December, 2017, 2,608,546,511 ordinary
shares with no par value of the Company were in
issue and were fully paid, and the total amount of
share capital of the Company was approximately
HK$442,244,000. The Company did not issue any new
shares or buy back any issued shares during the year
under review.

Details of the share capital of the Company are shown
in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements on
page 115.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, there
was no purchase, sale or redemption made by the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s
listed securities.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company as
disclosed in this Report, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company during the year under
review or subsisted at the end of the year.

RESERVES

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st
December, 2017 amounted to HK$838,924,000 (2016:
HK$188,114,000).

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are shown in the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity and Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 64 and 123 respectively.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the
Group for the preceding five financial years is set out
on page 131.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this
Report and those who were in office during the year
under review are:

Non-Executive Chairman
Madam Liu Ying
(appointed as Director on 9th December, 2017 and
elected as Chairman on 8th January, 2018)
Mr Ge Peijian
(resigned on 9th December, 2017)

Executive Directors
Madam Hsu Feng

Mr Albert Tong

Mr Wang Fahua
Madam Fan Suxia

Non-Executive Director
Mr Sung Tze-Chun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Liang Jung-chi

Mr Zhang Hong Bin

Mr Sit Hing Kwok
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Report of the Directors

EZRHRESE

A profile of the existing Directors of the Company is
shown on pages 31 to 35.

Information relating to emoluments paid to the
Company’s Directors during the year is set out in Note
12(a) to the consolidated financial statements on pages
105 and 106.

The emoluments of the executive Directors of the
Company were determined by the remuneration
committee of the Board (the “Committee”) and the
fees of the non-executive Directors of the Company
(whether independent or not) were fixed by the
Board under the authorization of the shareholders
of the Company and on the recommendation of the
Committee.

Pursuant to Article 73 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any Director of the Company appointed
by the Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting. Madam Liu Ying was
appointed a non-executive Director of the Company by
the Board in December 2017 and will therefore retire at
the 2018 AGM in accordance with Article 73 and being
eligible, she offers herself for re-election.

All Directors of the Company are subject to retirement
by rotation at annual general meetings of the Company
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association. Articles 77 to 79 provide that at every
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being or, if their number is not three or
a multiple of three, then the nearest number to but
not more than one-third shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who
have been longest in office since their last election
and shall be eligible for re-election. In this connection,
Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Liang Jung-chi will retire
by rotation at the 2018 AGM. Mr Liang Jung-chi has
informed the Company that he will not seek re-election
while Madam Hsu Feng, being eligible, offers herself for
re-election.

The re-election of Madam Liu Ying and Madam Hsu
Feng is subject to separate resolutions to be approved
by shareholders at the 2018 AGM and details of these
Directors will be disclosed in a circular of the Company
to be despatched to the shareholders together with the
notice of the annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors of the Company proposed for
re-election at the 2018 AGM have an unexpired service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The persons who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended
31st December, 2017 included Mr Chen Ganjin, Mr Ge
Peijian, Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong, Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles, Mr Chen Xiaoshi, Ms Lu Ying, Mr Yeung
Kam Hoi, Ms Lee Yuen Han, Mr Lau Che Kong,
Spencer and Mr Gu Xueli.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company
and subject to the provisions of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622), every Director of the
Company shall be indemnified by insurance out of
the funds of the Company against any liabilities which
he/she may incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto,
provided that such article shall only have effect in so
far as its provisions are not avoided by the Companies
Ordinance. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the directors and officers of the Group during the year
under review.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2017, the interests and short
positions of the Directors of the Company in shares,
debentures and underlying shares of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571) (the “SFO”)), which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein (including interests and
short positions which they were taken to have under
Section 344 of the SFO) or which were required to be
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

EECRZERRKR

R-E—+F+_A=1t—HB ARAREFR
R A) s ELE R AR B A B (3% (RE 75 R S 1R B
(BE71E) EXVEBZ EE ) 2D - BREER
MHERD P ES BER(ES LB %D %352
Rz IRECEAZ GO Tt &M A (BHRER
EC(GEF R E R B344GRFREREB N E R
FMoxkm) HBBRBEAEMEZIZMERLAR ([H
R D@ EMAR D (KRR Z 8 5E
GARRNA MBI ZEESORRIT

(1) The Company: (1) X7 :
Ordinary Shares B R
Number of shares of the Company
FRRAZRPHE
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Directors EZE# % AARR REER NEER Hitfg#R
Madam Liu Ying 3 Bit Nil £& Nil £& Nil & (4) Nil £
Madam Hsu Feng (B) & #Z* (B) 317,178,162 (C) Nil #& 255,676,326 (D), (E) 206,420,000 (F)
Mr Albert Tong (B) = FREE (B Nil 4% Nil £ Nil 779,274,488 (F)
Mr Wang Fahua TRELE Nil £ Nil £ Nil £ (4) Nil 4
(2) The Company’s associated corporation: (2) AT Z A EE :
Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics FEEIMEFBERAT
Port Co. Ltd. (“SZMP”) (THEFEAT]D
Registered capital Mg AR
Amount of registered capital of SZMP
WEFRARZEMERE
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Directors ESn4 BAESR ZEER AR HitriE s
Madam Liu Ying 3 Bt Nil £ Nil £ Nil & (G) Nil &
Madam Hsu Feng (B) % @&t B Nil £ Nil £ RMB50,000,000 (D), (H) Nil &
AR 50,000,000
Mr Albert Tong (B) #FR%E B Nil £ Nil & Nil & (1) Nil &
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Notes:

A)

As at 31st December, 2017, a total of 779,955,407
issued shares (being 29.9% of the total number of
issued shares) of the Company were beneficially
held by Best Central Developments Limited (“Best
Central”). Best Central was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park
Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”).

Mr Wang Fahua was a director of Best Central while
Madam Liu Ying was the vice chairman of the board,
deputy secretary of the party committee and legal
representative of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.

Mr Albert Tong is a son of Madam Hsu Feng.

As at 31st December, 2017, they were considered to
be persons acting in concert and held an aggregate
of 779,274,488 issued shares of the Company,
representing 29.87% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company, pursuant to the SFO.

Madam Hsu Feng held in her capacity as a beneficial
owner an interest in 317,178,162 issued shares of
the Company.

As at 31st December, 2017, Madam Hsu Feng was
entitled to control the exercise of more than one-third
of voting power at general meetings of Tomson
Group Limited (“TGL”).

A total of 255,676,326 issued shares of the
Company were beneficially held by Cosmos Success
Development Limited (“Cosmos Success”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of TGL, hence, Madam Hsu
Feng was deemed to have an interest in these shares
through a corporation controlled by her.

Madam Hsu Feng had entered into agreements
with her sons, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and
Mr Albert Tong, to sell to each of them 103,210,000
issued shares of the Company, in an aggregate
of 206,420,000 issued shares, which had been
pledged by Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and Mr Albert
Tong in favour of Madam Hsu Feng as a security for
their performance of the duties under the aforesaid
agreements. Pursuant to the SFO, as at 31st
December, 2017, Madam Hsu Feng was taken to
have a security interest in these 206,420,000 issued
shares of the Company.

As at 31st December, 2017, on account of the
aforesaid agreements and pursuant to the SFO,
Madam Hsu Feng held and was deemed to hold an
interest in a total of 779,274,488 issued shares of the
Company and Mr Albert Tong was therefore taken to
have an interest in these 779,274,488 issued shares
of the Company by virtue of being a person acting in
concert with Madam Hsu Feng.
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(G) As at 31st December, 2017, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech
held an interest of RMB183.55 million (being 49.5%)
in the registered capital of SZMP. Madam Liu Ying
was the vice chairman of the board, deputy secretary
of the party committee and legal representative of
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.

(H TGL held an interest of RMB50 million (being
13.5%) in the registered capital of SZMP through
its wholly-owned subsidiary. As at 31st December,
2017, Madam Hsu Feng was therefore deemed to
have an interest in the registered capital of SZMP
through a corporation controlled by her.

Mr Albert Tong was a director and a substantial
shareholder of TGL.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of
the Company and their associates had any interests
or short positions in the shares, debentures and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31st December, 2017,
which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein
(including interests or short positions which they were
taken to have under Section 344 of the SFO) or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“2012 Scheme”) on 1st June, 2012. Under the 2012
Scheme, there were no options granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31st
December, 2017, nor was there any option outstanding
at the beginning or at the end of the year.

The major terms of the 2012 Scheme are as follows:

Purpose

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to selected persons for their
contribution to any member of the Group or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest (“Invested Entity”).
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Participants

The participants of the 2012 Scheme include, inter alia:

() any employee or proposed employee (whether full
time or part time) of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity, including any executive
director of any of these entities; or

(i) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive director) of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; or

(i) any customer of or supplier of goods or services to
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
or

(iv) any adviser or consultant of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; or

(v) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or

(vi) any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares
available for issue

The maximum number of shares of the Company in
respect of which options may be granted under the
2012 Scheme must not exceed 260,854,651 shares,
being 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of this Report, unless
shareholders’ approval of the Company has been
obtained.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares of the Company issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to each participant (including exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant of option shall not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the date
of grant (the “Individual Limit”). If any further grant
of options to a participant would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
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granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant to be in excess of the Individual Limit,
such further grant must be subject to shareholders’
approval in general meeting of the Company with such
participant and his or her associates abstaining from
voting.

Exercise period of options

An option may be exercised at any time during a period
as the Board may determine which shall not be more
than 10 years commencing from the date of grant of
the option.

Minimum holding period of an option
before exercise

Save as determined by the Board and stated in the
offer of the relevant options, there is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised.

Acceptance of an option

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option
must be made within 28 days from the date on which
such offer is made with a non-refundable payment of
HK$1 from the grantee to the Company by way of a
consideration for the grant thereof.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share of the Company in
respect of any option that may be granted under the
2012 Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its
absolute discretion shall determine, save that such
price will not be less than the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of the option, which
must be a business day; and

(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares of
the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the
option.
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Remaining life

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in
general meeting or by the Board, the 2012 Scheme
shall be valid and effective till 31st May, 2022. After
the expiry of such valid period, no further options will
be offered or granted but in all other respects the
provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the 2012 Scheme, at no time during the
year nor at the end of the year ended 31st December,
2017, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

The following existing Directors of the Company
are considered to have interests in business which
may compete or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group, other
than that business where the Directors have been
appointed/were appointed as directors to represent the
interests of the Company and/or the Group, pursuant
to the Listing Rules:

()  Madam Liu Ying is the vice chairman of the board,
deputy secretary of the party committee and legal
representative of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech. Zhangjiang
Hi-Tech, its subsidiaries and associates have
participated in property development and
investment in the Mainland, including, inter alia,
in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park of Pudong New Area
(“Zhangjiang Park”) in Shanghai; and

(i) Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Albert Tong are
chairman and vice-chairman of board of directors
of TGL respectively. They are also substantial
shareholders of TGL. TGL has through its
subsidiaries taken part in property development
and investment in the Mainland, mainly in Pudong
New Area of Shanghai, as well as in Macau.
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In addition, Mr Ge Peijian, the former Chairman of
the Board, acted as the vice chairman of the board
of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech during his tenure of office as a
Director of the Company and was therefore considered
to have interests in business which might compete or
was likely to compete with the business of the Group.

Property development and investment is one of the
principal activities of the Group. The Group participates
in property development and investment in the
Zhangjiang Park and Fengxian District of Shanghai
through its subsidiaries and an associated company.
Accordingly, the business of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech
and TGL (collectively the “Potential Competitors”)
in the property sector in Shanghai (the “Excluded
Business”) may potentially compete with the Group’s
business. Zhangjiang Hi-Tech is a listed company in
Shanghai and TGL is a listed company in Hong Kong.
The Group’s business and the Excluded Business
are managed by independent management and
administration respectively. Besides, the Board is
independent of the boards of directors of the Potential
Competitors and the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company assist in monitoring the
operation of the Group, the Group is therefore capable
of carrying on its business independently of, and at an
arm’s length from, the Excluded Business.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company or an entity
connected with him (within the meaning of Section 486
of the Companies Ordinance) had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, were entered into during
the year ended 31st December, 2017 or subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the arrangement for sharing of administrative
expenses with TGL as disclosed in Note 23(b) to the
consolidated financial statements on page 116, no
contracts for the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of any business of the
Group were entered into or subsisted during the year
ended 31st December, 2017.
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PENSION SCHEMES

The Company participates in a pension scheme,
which was registered under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485) (the “MPF
Ordinance”), for all its employees in Hong Kong. The
scheme is a defined contribution scheme effective from
November 2002 and is funded by contributions from
employer and employees pursuant to the provisions
of the MPF Ordinance. Should the employer make
any voluntary contributions for the employees under
the scheme, forfeited contributions in this nature can
be applied to reduce the amount of future voluntary
contributions payable by the employer.

In addition, the employees of the Group in the Mainland
are members of respective state-managed defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes operated by the
local government. The employer and the employees are
obliged to make contributions at a certain percentage of
the payroll under rules of the schemes.

During the year under review, the total amount
contributed by the Group to the above schemes and
charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss amounted to HK$38,000 (2016: HK$36,000) and
no contributions were forfeited.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable
assets to the Group’s business. The Group provides
competitive remuneration package and makes regular
review to attract and motivate the employees.

The Group also understands that relationship is the
fundamentals of business. Therefore, the Group
maintains close relationship with its suppliers and
customers. To maintain the Group’s competitiveness,
the Group aims at delivering constantly quality
products and services to its customers. During the year
ended 31st December, 2017, there was no material
and significant dispute between the Group and its
suppliers and/or customers.

Report of the Directors

EERHEE

RKE 5 E

ARRREMENETE2EEZET —HRRH
MR EGE) (F485%) ([GRIEE RHIN])
THEMZEREETE - ZERAR B RFAEHRK
AE YR _TTE_F+—ARAER - ZATETS
RECRBES GO 2 GXAREREEFELHE
Ko MEETEZFE T RESFLEMAMILEZ
R Rl E 2 B B0 Wz S 50R] B VR HUR
TR RN AN 2 BRRIEHRFGRER -

7

SN - REEEAN M 2B B BE B M7 B A
MzBEREEAETHFRAKBMNAEZKE @ &
ITREEHARBEZEAEZRARFMET
B LR -

REEFER  AEBEY A 8L 2 5%
FEASRAEER 2 HIRAFEESS,000ETT (= F
— "% 36,0008 7T) - BB BRI HK -

HES FEFRkHERzBRE

AEERAREHAKE L XBREEEE - K
SERMARF N ZHM T RIAAF G E R
Al KB E & -

AEBENMAABRERDEB 2BA - At - A& E
HHEEEELREFPREREVBER AERFAEE
ZEFN ASRERIMARFRHE—EZEEL
EakES RB8E-_ZZ—+E+-_F=+—8H
HFER AEEREHEERE SFF 2EHM
BEEIRBEAZUD -

Annual Report 2017 FEEF

50



51

Report of the Directors

EZRHRESE

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS BRRZERRKXR

AND SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31st December, 2017, the following shareholders W-ZE—+E+-"A=+—H  THRE (KD
(other than the Directors of the Company) were ®EERKRIN) BEESBEMEES AQF DT
interested, directly or indirectly, in 5% or more of the XD RAABEIXMDEH ES5%a A FRHEZS - Mz E
number of issued shares and underlying shares of #EZS/BEER(ESLEASEEM)FE33615 7 R EE
the Company and those interests were required to $(REBTHEFZEEMA :

be recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:

(1) Substantial shareholders: 1) FERRK:
Number of shares held
(proportion to the
number of issued shares)
FEERGEA
Name of shareholders RRE® (LERTROYEZADL)
Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) Co., Ltd. HARI(RE)BRAA 779,955,407  (29.90%)
(“Zhangjiang Group”) (a) ([RI%E]) @A)
Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park FARIRNEERRERNERAA 779,955,407 (29.90%)
Development Co., Ltd. (TR IRkt (@)

(“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech’) (3)

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (b) ZFRTE b 779,274,488  (29.87%)

(2) Other persons: (2) Hft AL :

Number of shares held

(proportion to the

number of issued shares)

FEERGEA

Name of shareholder RRER (HERTROMBEZADL)
Tomson Group Limited (“TGL") (¢) HESEERAA(ZEEE]D K 255,676,326 (9.80%)

Notes: Btat -

(a) The references to 779,955,407 issued shares were (a) _E#LATIE R 2779,955,407 0% E B 1TRR 1D Jh3E AR
related to the same block of shares of the Company NRZFR—HRG - ZERH B Best Central
which was beneficially held by Best Central. Best EH % ¥ ° Best Central /& Shanghai (Z.J.)
Central was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai Hi-Tech Park Limited ([ Shanghai (Z.J.)]) 2 &
(2.J.) Hi-Tech Park Limited (“Shanghai (Z.J.)”) which BEMBAR  MEEBARIKRNDEZERE @ K
was in turn wholly owned by Zhangjiang Hi-Tech TEBEAFEERTIRG 2 850%E5 o Bt -
in which Zhangjiang Group held more than 50% Best Central » Shanghai (Z.J.) * &I %5 K&k
interest. Therefore, Best Central, Shanghai (Z.J.), TEBERB(ESLBHEBRIDEESER B
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech and Zhangjiang Group were BREROOER -

interested or were taken to be interested in these
shares pursuant to the SFO.

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JI|JAI 5 [E B R 2 &)



(b) By virtue of being a person acting in concert with
Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles was
taken to have an interest in 779,274,488 issued
shares of the Company which referred to the same
block of shares of the Company in which Madam Hsu
Feng and Mr Albert Tong were interested or taken to
be interested, as disclosed in the above paragraph
headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Securities” in this Report.

(c) The 255,676,326 issued shares of the Company
were beneficially held by Cosmos Success. Cosmos
Success was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hoffman
Enterprises Corp. (“Hoffman”) which was in turn
wholly owned by Tomson Corporation in which TGL
held the entire interest. Therefore, Cosmos Success,
Hoffman, Tomson Corporation and TGL were interested
or were taken to be interested in these shares
pursuant to the SFO.

The aforesaid shares constituted a part of the total
interests of Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong
and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles in the shares of the
Company as disclosed in the above paragraph
headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Securities” in this Report and in this paragraph
respectively.

Save for the above interests, the Directors of the
Company are not aware of any person (other than
the Directors of the Company) who had, directly or
indirectly, interests or short positions in the number
of issued shares and the underlying shares of the
Company and those interests or short positions were
required to be recorded in the register kept under
Section 336 of the SFO as at 31st December, 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors
as at the date of this Report, the Company maintains
a sufficient public float as prescribed by the Listing
Rules.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

EZRHRESE

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the
Group has mainly engaged in the sale and leasing of
car parking spaces in Shanghai and securities trading
in Hong Kong, so the principal activities of the Group
did not give arise to any material adverse influences on
the environment.

The Group is committed to acting in an environmentally
responsible manner. The conscientious use of resources
and adoption of green office practices in the Group’s
offices, such as double-sided printing and copying,
promoting re-cycling principle and reducing energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings and
electrical appliances, underlie its commitment to
safeguarding the environment.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group commits itself to comply with the
relevant laws and regulations including, inter alia,
the Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules, and
other applicable local laws and regulations in various
jurisdictions in which it operates. During the year ended
31st December, 2017, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations
that had a significant impact on it.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31st December, 2017 have been
audited by the Auditor of the Company, Messrs Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu and there was no change in the
Auditor of the Company in previous three financial
years.

They will retire at the conclusion of the 2018 AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Albert Tong
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 16th March, 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Rivera (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 60 to 126, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st
December, 2017, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31st December, 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEMBES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Interest in an associate

We identified the interest in an associate as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the Group’s interest in
the associate to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole.

As disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company held 37% interest in the
associate, Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port
Co. Ltd., which is the Group’s strategic investment
in Shanghai. The Group’s share of results from the
associate for the year ended 31st December, 2017 is
HK$177,992,000 which is approximately 63% of the
Group’s profit for the year and the Group’s share of the
associate’s net assets is HK$975,284,000 as at 31st
December, 2017 which is approximately 31% of the
Group’s total assets.

As further disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements, the principal activities of the
associate are property development and investment.
The Group’s share of results of an associate is highly
dependent on the associate’s revenue recognised for
the year ended 31st December, 2017. We also focused
on the properties held for sale and land appreciation
tax payable which represented approximately 8% of the
total assets of the associate and approximately 81% of
the total liabilities of the associate, respectively as at
31st December, 2017.

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1| JAI 5[ %5 BR A &)
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Our procedures in relation to the interest in an
associate included:

e |nvolving a component audit team to perform audit
of the financial information of the associate;

e Discussing with the management of the Group
and working with the component audit team to
understand the associate’s business performance
and significant events for the year to identify and
assess risks that are significant to the audit of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements;

e FEvaluating the sufficiency and appropriateness of
the component audit team’s work by reviewing
their underlying audit documentation;

e Discussing with the component audit team to
further understand results of their work in particular
those on the associate’s revenue, properties held
for sale and land appreciation tax payable; and

e Evaluating the accuracy of financial data of the
associate used by the management of the Group
by comparing them with financial information
audited by the component audit team.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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BYZEMBES

RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
Directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.
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e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Sze On Tat.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

16th March, 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEER

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 B2 —F—+E+=-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
ZE—tF CT—RF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’000
B 5 FERT FAT
Gross proceeds from operations A S 4R 788 140,097 633,532
Revenue $ A 788 2,269 3,681
Cost of sales Fick=— D (398) (1,046)
Gross profit E A 1,871 2,635
Dividends from available-for-sale AHEEREZ
investments & Bug A 86,000 38,220
Other income H bl A 9 8,980 12,802
Selling expenses HEBM (1) (64)
Administrative expenses TR E A (12,297) (12,102)
Exchange gain (loss) PE 7 ek (E18) 1,645 (10,571)
Net gain in held-for-trading FERBEWEFE
investments 7,388 101,220
93,586 132,140
Share of results of an associate JE1E — KBt & R A EAE 177,992 187,883
Profit before taxation BR A% B & A 271,578 320,023
Taxation I8 10 9,743 (14,173)
Profit for the year F 2% F 11 281,321 305,850
Profit for the year attributable to: FERAMOELOT
Owners of the Company AKRAERFEA 281,142 305,586
Non-controlling interests FEFEIR AR R A 179 264
281,321 305,850
Earnings per share (HK cents) AT GB)
— Basic —EHK 14 10.78 11.71
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEEkAEMEEERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HE2—F—+F+-_A=+—HILEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FERT FH&T
Profit for the year F Z i F 281,321 305,850
Other comprehensive income (expense): Hme2mks () :
Items that may be subsequently HEAJE D EEEm
reclassified to profit or loss H)IE H
Gain on change in fair value of AHEEREATE
available-for-sale investments BEREL WS 147,434 147,022
Exchange differences arising BMETYSEREEZ
from translation of: ME X ZE R
— other foreign operations —H B INERE 12,145 (10,930)
- an associate ——RKEE QA 71,082 (55,701)
Other comprehensive income for the year /8 B 2 HE Uz 230,661 80,391
Total comprehensive income FEZEW=ARE
for the year 511,982 386,241
Total comprehensive income (expense) 2HEWE (AX) 85
attributable to: DR -
Owners of the Company RAREEFEEA 511,017 386,684
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR IR B 2 965 (443)
511,982 386,241
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

w e B IS AR R

At 31st December, 2017 RA—ZE—+F+_-_A=+—H
2017 201 6
—E—tF ZE2—RF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
B 5 FERT FAT
Non-current Assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEKE 15 5,290 6,337
Investment property S-S 16 28,563 28,563
Interest in an associate R—REE QA 2w 17 975,284 921,610
Deferred tax assets FIETIE & B 24 16,594 15,324
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 18 776,956 556,689
1,802,687 1,528,523
Current Assets REEE
Properties held for sale HEME 18,942 18,089
Held-for-trading investments HFEKRE 19 57,287 27,369
Other receivables and prepayments B th & UK BR S R TR 5RIE 21,211 24,358
Prepaid tax SRR 2,235 -
Cash and bank balances e RIRITE R 20 1,218,731 1,152,132
1,318,406 1,221,948
Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables BB ZER - Hib
and accruals JE A BR FR K TB IR 5K 0B 21 16,745 19,606
Tax payable FEI 718 113,857 101,063
130,602 120,669
Net Current Assets REBEERE 1,187,804 1,101,279
Total Assets less Current Liabilities £EEBRRBER 2,990,491 2,629,802
Capital and Reserves EXER#E
Share capital (LN 22 442,244 442,244
Reserves 5 2,504,960 2,124,370
Equity attributable to owners KRR EZEA A
of the Company JEIG = 2,947,204 2,566,614
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR AR R A 2 11,203 10,238
Total Equity R 2,958,407 2,576,852
Non-current Liability kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIERE 24 32,084 52,950
2,990,491 2,629,802
The consolidated financial statements were approved #REHBHRER_ZE—NF=A+BEEZH

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

eI AR T

16th March, 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Liu Ying
2 =
Chairman

o

IEHT@J%%&&;EEE%

Albert Tong
BT E

Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SERTRER

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # & ==

—tFT-A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R SEE)
Profit before taxation & B3 BT s A 271,578 320,023
Adjustments for: AR S 2
Interest income 1 E U A (8,933) (12,696)
Dividends from available-for-sale AHEEERE CREKA
investments (86,000) (38,220)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERXEITE
equipment 1,047 1,047
Loss on change in fair value of FEKREATFEEZEHF
held-for-trading investments EEZER 1,726 226
Written-off property, plant and WEME - BB R &
equipment 2 =
Share of results of an associate E—XEERNREE (177,992) (187,883)
Operating cash flows before movements LIEESEERZ
in working capital REIFVEME 1,428 82,497
Decrease in properties held for sale FEYER D 417 2,236
(Increase) decrease in held-for-trading FHFELE (M) R
investments (31,644) 405,842
Decrease (increase) in other receivables H b e AR R R T
and prepayments FRIER A (38 40) 4,771 (1,979)
Decrease in trade and other payables JERHE SR Hth fE At
and accruals AR R TR IR R IE R A (3,400) (5,783)
Cash (used in) from operations (AR RBEKREESH RS (28,428) 482,813
Income taxes paid B FTSH (1,973) (5,867)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM (AR)REREEH 2
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEFE (30,401) 476,946

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1| JAI 5[ %5 BR A &)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SERERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 B2 —F—+E+-A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E-tF —T—RF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FERT T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Dividends received from an associate BR—FRBERNAZIE
(net of withholding tax) WA (BB 185,630 66,497
Increase in available-for-sale investments ol = HHE S E AN - (40,689)
Interest received 2 W F 8 8,252 12,122
Dividends received from available-for-sale SBR[t HE®RE 2
investments A% 8 U A 16,269 4,121
NET CASH FROM INVESTING RERETBHZ2HESFHE
ACTIVITIES 210,151 42,051
CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITY AREEETSH2H S
Dividend paid BT S (130,427) (52,171)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH HERREEEEHE
EQUIVALENTS 1 hnE &8 49,323 466,826
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—BZzHER
AT 1ST JANUARY BH&ZEEEB 1,152,132 697,398
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE MEHBEREEG O HE
RATE CHANGES 17,276 (12,092)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=-—HA=+—HZ
AT 31ST DECEMBER, BERBE£EEHHER
represented by cash and bank balances IR e RRITER 1,218,731 1,152,132
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I Rk M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HE2—F—+F+-_A=+—HILEE

1.

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered
office and principal place of business is Rooms
1501-2 and 1507-12, 15th Floor, Wing On Centre,
111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are property
development and investment, and securities
trading and investment.

APPLICATION OF NEW
AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the
first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 12

The application of the above amendments to
HKFRSs had no material effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current or
prior accounting periods.

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1| JAI 5[ %5 BR A &)

1.

—gER

ARBB—RRBBEMA L2 2ARBRA
A ERONEBBMERZZABRLE (M5
R EW e RRARZAMPERRTEE
2 MU REE T HET KL R
31511501-2 % 1507-12F o

ARBIREMBAR (SEAEE]) 2T
EBROEFERIRENELFEERKE -

FER R R A K
(BERMBHREER)

ARBBRAER ERRMAT A EEE:
HRREM 2 (BBHBERELADETA

(BRgstEADETR REZHM
(B3 %)

(BRastEADE12% RAZREREZETHR
(B3I %K) BE

(FEMBREERN) HRAZT-NFE-ZT-X
F125% (BT K) FRR(REMBREE

) BV R B A — 2R 17

ERIA LCBEMBHRELERNET AU AL
BERAgt RSB E S E 2K E MK
BRUEBEATE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 &£ ==

2. APPLICATION OF NEW
AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STAN DARDS (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

e MBMRME
—tFt A+ AILFE

& R 3R] I B8 B
(BERMBREER) @

AN S R B2 B A A TS 2 MR A 1B M R AE R
ZEET R BB BT B RELER)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the related Amendments'

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

HK(FRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration'

HK(FRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty Over Income Tax Treatments?

Amendments to Classifications and Measurement of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions'

Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” with
HKFRS 4 HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”™

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
HKFRS 9 Compensation?

Amendments to HKFRS  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
10 and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
HKAS 28 Ventures?

Amendments to As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKAS 28 HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'

Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property!
HKAS 40

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
HKFRSs Cycle 2

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2019.

(BEUKREED)FEH
(BEUEREER)
F15%
(BARBREEA)F 165
<’i§i§,ﬁﬁ%$&%£,ﬁu>%w%ﬁ
55 (BB BERERE
£8%)- 1%%22%
&5 (BB ERERE
£8%)- 1%%23%
(BEUEREER)
F25 (BRI K)
(BEUBEREER)
F45 (BT K)

(BEUBEREER)

F9%: (BT A)
(BEUBEREER)

FI0ER(BBE L)

F28% (BATK)
(BBgiEa)

F28%% (BRTK)
(BBgiEa)

F285% (BATK)

(BB G EA)F403
(BEHBREER)
(EETA)

RS
AR A AR o

SHIA

REXRFENMERAES
&l

HeE?

RERA 44

SR S RIARA B

FGHR N B XA 2 12
BEXNRZNDERGTE

R ERMBEREEA)H9
HIEMIA|E <<'i§ﬁ§@7f
BREEN) B4R RRA
A —HER

ARARENRAER

REEREBENAHNAE
CERFEAELERRA

RBENRARAECENER
HWE/‘Q
FAR-Z-NEE-FE—RX
FRB(ARMBREE
BII) B9 4 /8 it /) — Ep "
REMEER

T—hEE-_ET—+4#
(BB BREERN)E
F B

—NF-A-—BRERFARZIFE

2 RIZE-NF-HA-BRERRBZFE

HAR AR

¢ RBEE<AHIERFARIFEHRE

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
a date to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2021.

HKFRS 9 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

2 o
¢ RZB_—F-A-HAEERRRZIFE
HARR AR o

(BEMBREER)FSRSIAT BBME

BE MBAEE  —RYFPETELVBE
ERENDBMABZHAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Re R ERMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—+ &+ _A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW . ERET KRB R

AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STAN DARDS (Continued)

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”).
All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, the Group may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the
fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held-for-trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit
losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words,
it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and
risk management policies as at 31st December,
2017, the Directors of the Company anticipate the
following potential impact on initial application of
HKFRS 9:

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1| JAI 5[ %5 BR A &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B IRAREE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —F—+ &+ _A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW
AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STAN DARDS (Continued)

Classification and measurement:

Listed equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at fair value as disclosed in
Note 18: these securities qualified for designation
as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9,
however, the fair value gains accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve amounting to
HK$316,990,000 as at 1st January, 2018 will no
longer be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
under HKFRS 9, which is different from the current
treatment. This will affect the amounts recognised
in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit
or loss but will not affect total comprehensive
income.

Equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at cost less impairment as
disclosed in Note 18: these securities qualified for
designation as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS
9 and the Group will measure these securities
at fair value at the end of subsequent reporting
periods with fair value gains or losses to be
recognised as other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve.
The Directors of the Company have assessed
the impact on application of relevant HKFRS 9
standards and it will not have material impact on
the results and the financial position of the Group.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same bases as
are currently measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment:

In general, the Directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the expected credit loss
model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision
of credit losses which are not yet incurred in
relation to the Group’s financial assets measured
at amortised costs and other items that subject
to the impairment provisions upon application of
HKFRS 9 by the Group.

2.

J& F #7 5] I S22 X
(BERMBREER) @

PEREE:

MO EAERATEFEZAUHEEREN L
TRAZES (RKIFI18HE)  ZSESHH
E(EEMBERELER)FOFIZ A FEFA
EME2EKENSTXNGE - Am - BRE(E
BB RELELNFESSR R —NF—A
—BREEEMFEERETHAFERSE
316,990,000 TE B THEHNHEEE
wm ZERTREEFNRITERAE &l
FEAEENGAESRBERNERE BT
eYEIHKERE -

By BRI AR R B 51 BR 2 B B R
BHRAES (RIT18KE) - 2FFFH
E(EAEVHHREEN)FORZ A FEFTA
HzmB s h e - AREHRER
MmEMREAFEFAEZEES  AFE
Wk B R ARMEER ST NIRE SR
FERG - ARAEZCHERACEEMH

SRADFIRABFLEANRZE  HET &

BAKENRELRW RN ERNEATE

B A AR RS A R R (B
BT 95 A1) B30% (B AT i R kR

%0
e

—RME  ARREFAHEA(EEM B R
SEADFIRNAREEBERRAGEZR
SERERCEBM B HREED) FIHRER -
IARBIREHEAN AN EZMBEEARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mRE R AR MIEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 =—ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW

AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STAN DARDS (Continued)

Such further impairment recognised under
expected credit loss model would reduce the
opening retained profits at 1st January, 2018 upon
the application of HKFRS 9 in 2018. The Directors
of the Company have assessed the impact on
application of HKFRS 9 and it will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 was issued to establish a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”
and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as)
the entity satisfies a performance
obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required under HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B IRAREE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —F—+ &+ _A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW
AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STAN DARDS (Continued)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to
HKFRS 15 in relation to the identification of
performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result
in more disclosures, however, the Directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the
respective reporting periods.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of other new and revised HKFRSs and
interpretations will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and comply with the requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which
concern the preparation of consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments, which are measured
at fair value, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Re R ERMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—+ &+ _A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESTHEX

PO L I C I ES (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1| JAI 5[ %5 BR A &)

NFERNRAEBYMS2EEREFRS
hE—REEMSKEER —RE B
S ZER M mZEREE A ERBE
HAEM S —EAERMEL GG M5
SEERFEANHEELREEEREE
BEESRBEZRH  AAKERMGFTEE
HEBBEZRATFERHEERZSZEH - LER
BUBBRERTEFER IBEBERABZ LT
BENREEEETE  EERC(EEMBRE
ERDFE25 [ IR T | BE 2 RS 2
5 BIKERBEAEADE1TRIHE | HE
ZHERS  ARERTESR BRI
BYFAFEZFE(WCEBSTER)SE
2 [ IFE | 2 AR R ES(E B ST LR
FI6R I EERE] 2 EREE) BRI -

FHBGEENAFEFEFRTHE2EER
BEAZEECRSMRERGABZEE
HETHERERS RRERAENZ—BD
S EEMELRERGENEES

AN M BHREMS - BRAFEAEZEH
ABEBEZAUBEEREER A FEAEZH AR
BEHHBRIZEBEMEME  AFEAETSD
BRE-P B_R/IE=F #FBEWOT:

o FE-RBWMABEBEDERBNFERHAIA
REZHEREERBEREARMSEH 2

s FE_RBMABEBDIBRE L AZRE
Sh REERABRAERKARBEL
WARR &

s FE=RBMABEBNEEXBEZIFAE
R ABUE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B IRAREE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company
and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. The results of subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the
date of the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All significant inter-group transactions, balances,
income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mRE R AR MIEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 EZ =%

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at cost
less any identified impairment loss.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, interest in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associate.

The associate’s financial statements used for the
application of equity method of accounting are
prepared using uniform accounting policies with
the Group for transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of the associate
to bring its accounting policies into line with
those used in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B IRAREE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLIC'ES (Continued)
Interest in an associate (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” are
applied to determine whether it is necessary to
recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s interest in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate,
profits or losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—+ &+ _A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEEFHRw

PO L I C I ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (continueq)

The Group’s financial assets are classified into
one of the three categories, including financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held-for-trading
investments if they have been acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the near future.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain
or loss recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets and is included in
the “net gain in held-for-trading investments” line
item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in
Note 6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B IRAREE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

PO L I C I ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (continueq)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
other receivables and cash and bank balances)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated as available-for-sale
or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments
or loans and receivables. Available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do
not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—+ &+ _A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESTHEX

79

PO L I C I ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (continueq)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value
through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an available-for-sale equity investment below
its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed through
consolidated statement of profit or loss in
subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B IRAREE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

PO L I C I ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (continueq)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses
will not reverse in subsequent periods.

For loans and receivables, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through consolidated statement
of profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 =—ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEEFHRw

PO L I C I ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (continueq)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial assets are derecognised only when
the contractual rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire or, the financial assets
are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial assets. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and any cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B IRAREE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —F—+ &+ _A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

PO L I C I ES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held for
capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost
of investment properties using the straight-line
method. No depreciation is provided in respect of
freehold land.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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mRE R AR MIEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 EZ =%

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

PO L I C I ES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account their estimated residual value, using
the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Freehold land and buildings 2.5%
Leasehold land and buildings 8%
Furniture and equipment 10% to 20%

Motor vehicle 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset is determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and is included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B IRAREE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

PO L I C I ES (Continued)

Leasehold land and building (continued)

When the minimum lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.

Impairment losses

At the end of reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost or estimated net realisable value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mRE R AR MIEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 EZ =%

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLIC I ES (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the
respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the buyers. Payments received from
purchasers prior to this stage are recorded as
receipts in advance under current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’s rights to receive payment have
been established.

Revenue from sales of held-for-trading investments
is recognised on a trade date basis.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of
revenue from operating leases is described in the
accounting policy for leasing below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant
lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B IRAREE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLIC'ES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the period in which they arise except
for exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income
and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s foreign
operations.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”)) at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.
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mRE R AR MIEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 EZ =%

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

PO L I C I ES (Continued)
Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
before taxation as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years, and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of the assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and interest in an associate, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interest are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B IRAREE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLIC'ES (Continued)
Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that has
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, except
when they relate to items charged or credited
directly to other comprehensive income, in which
case, the current tax and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Retirement benefits schemes

Contributions payable by the Group to its defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes are
charged as an expense to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognisd at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All the short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—+ &+ _A=+—HIFE

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in Note 3, the
Directors of the Company are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The key source of estimation uncertainty that can
significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
financial information in the next financial year is
disclosed as follows:

Valuation of properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are measured at the lower
of cost or net realisable value. Net realisable value
is determined by reference to Directors’ estimates
based on the prevailing market condition. The
Group has properties held for sale in Shanghai and
Macau, which exposes the Group to certain price
risk. If the net realisable value is less than the cost,
further impairment on the properties held for sale
has to be made. The management is optimistic
about the prospect of the Group’s investment in
the property sector and it has been cautious in
formulating and reviewing regularly the Group’s
business plan. The carrying amounts of properties
held for sale of the Group at 31 December, 2017
was HK$18,942,000 (2016: HK$18,089,000).
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

U N C E RTAI NTY (Continued)
Land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in
the Mainland China. However, the implementation
and settlement of the tax vary amongst different
jurisdictions in various cities in the Mainland
China and the Group has not finalised its land
appreciation tax calculation and payments with
any local tax authorities in the Mainland China.
Accordingly, significant judgment is required in
determining the amount of the land appreciation
tax and its related income tax provisions. The
Group recognised the land appreciation tax based
on management’s best estimates. The final tax
outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, and these differences will
have impact on the income tax provisions in the
periods in which such tax is finalised with local tax
authorities.

Fair value measurements and
valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. The Group
works closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation technique that
include inputs that are not based on observable
market data to estimate the fair value of
investment properties. If there are changes in
facts and circumstances which result in revision
of unobservable market data, such changes
will impact the fair value. Notes 6(c) and 16
provide detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in
the determination of the fair value of various assets
and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—+ &+ _A=+—HIFE

5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from the prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained profits.

The Directors of the Company review the capital
structure periodically by considering the cost of
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capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. When necessary, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs
as well as the issue of new debt.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. T A
(a) Categories of financial (a) =M T AEE7
instruments
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
F&T FET
Financial assets BkEE
Held-for-trading investments FERE 57,287 27,369
Loans and receivables (including B EWERER (B1E
cash and cash equivalents) BehBE£EEHER) 1,239,599 1,175,448
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE 776,956 556,689
Financial liabilities BkAas
Amortised cost BIHA AR 10,360 10,353
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

6. TRIT H »

(b) ¥HEBEEERRERBE

(b) Financial risks management

objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, held-for-trading
investments, other receivables, cash and
bank balances and trade and other payables.
Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest
rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented in a timely and effective
manner.

The Group’s activities expose it primarily
to the financial risks of changes in foreign
currency exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices. Market risk exposures are
further measured by sensitivity analysis. There
has been no significant change to the Group’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risk.
Details of each type of market risks are
described as follows:

(i) Currency risk

Certain cash and bank balances of the
Group are denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) which is a foreign currency other
than functional currency (i.e. HKD) of the
relevant Group entities (see Note 20). The
Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However,
management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.

AEEBZFZeRIARRAHLEER
B HERE EMEBRENR REeR
RITHEER UREBNE SRR EME
MR - ZFeRMIAZHBEERNIEH
MEEARE 2SR T AMER @R
BREMZER (E8ERE - = E R &R
AEBRAR)  EEERRNIRDESE
B o TXESIB B EZERR
R -EEEEENEEZERER - A
FER B M s M B R BRER & 8 2 #8568 ©

AEBEXBFETEMAMINEER  F R
BRAERES 2 REAR - 5 ERRE
—HUHRED IS - NEEFEY
Z i E RS EEE M EER 2T
WEEKXER - SEMGRERFDLT :

() BEXEmERE

AEBETRE MRITERTIAA
REE MARELEREEE
B2 E" (ABTT) A2 5
(RKIaE20) - AEE B Y EIMNE
HHBER - R EEE-—EEE
SME R - I E BN T 2 b 5
BERINERRR ©
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 =—ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ST H

(Continued)

(b) Financial risks management
objectives and policies (continued)

(b) HEEMEERERBE =

93

(i) Currency risk (Continued) () BE¥EEE)
Sensitivity analysis BREDN
The sensitivity analyses below have been TEIJZ@( REJE o T IR IR & B R
determined based on the exposure to ZEBRRAREEMETE -
currency risk at the end of the reporting
period.
The following details the Group’s sensitivity DA 2 it 7N £2 [ ﬂﬁ(ﬁfﬁ’j}%ﬁ)ﬂ’u}\
to a 5% (2016: 5%) appreciation/ REHAEENS (ZT—NF
depreciation in HKD against RMB. 5%) °
e post-tax profit for the year ended e HEz_ZE—+HF+-_A=1+—
31st December, 2017 would B FER %R SR,
decrease/increase by approximately In#47,0008 7L ( —Z & — <
HK$47,000 (2016: HK$307,000) 4 : 307,000/ 7T)
(ii) Interest rate risk (i) FIE
The Group has minimal interest rate risk BRETEMEEE RIS HH AT
as most of the interest bearing financial FR - MAEEZFERARILTE
assets are bank deposits. As the Group K o HRA AN B I 78 5 F) = & &)
does not expect material fluctuation in FHIRBBAKRS - BOF X R BRI
interest rate movement, the exposure to EK e
interest rate risk is insignificant.
(iii) Equity price risk (iii) B AE# R

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity
securities. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risks and
closely monitor the price changes.

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1| JAI 5[ %5 BR A &)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risks management

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 &2 —=

£RTIT A e

e MBMRME
—tFt A+ AILFE

(b) IBEBREEEEREE 2

objectives and policies (continuea)

(iii) Equity price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on the exposure
to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period.

If the prices of the respective equity
securities had been 10% (2016: 10%)
higher/lower:

e post-tax profit for the year ended
31st December, 2017 would increase/
decrease by approximately
HK$4,783,000 (2016: approximately
HK$2,285,000) for the Group as a
result of the changes in fair value of
held-for-trading investments; and

e other comprehensive income would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$73,317,000 (2016: approximately
HK$51,600,000) for the Group as a
result of the changes in fair value of
listed available-for-sale investments.

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk, which will
cause a financial loss to the Group, arises
from the carrying amount of respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position
due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
Group will ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover any overdue debts. The
Group reviews the recoverable amount of

(iii) MR AEHE A B ()
BEBEDW

Nz BURE DA TR B RS B R
ZERANERRARAELEMETE °

MR A TE 2 EBK T
10% (ZZ—7"F : 10%) :

amirm%lzm«é,ﬁmﬂﬂ
HREFEREZATFEZSHM
1% bu/;ﬁz > #4,783,00058 JT
— T — X 42,285,000

, 2 | U =
iG] L\ tH & i w®EZ
//)529\ 7
73,317,000/ 7L (ZZE—7~
#751,600,00058 7T) ©

PE{

R-FB—tF+-A=1—8 883
AEERXPBEBERENZAEERRZ
HRERE MR Ry &IAD R
BEENRAERXZHFEEIETR
TR -

STREEERR AKEGERS X
B & E’JEELTTEMSZ@E@?@EHEHZ
E75 o ANEREN R E IR %58 @ 5
FEM R R 2 FT U (B & %8 - DARERBL A
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EWMI A
(Continued)
(b) Financial risks management (b) HBEEREEEEREE @
objectives and policies (continued)
each individual receivable at the end of the WE4sEEL R %@,}W BE B - ik
reporting period to ensure that adequate ME AABEERAEIEBZEER
impairment losses are recognised for e AtER D o
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
Besides concentration of credit risk on liquid SERRETSEETRIRITNES
funds which are deposited with several banks KREZRBECEARENEERRRIN
and security brokers with high credit ratings, EETVEEMBEAER ZEEERMM -
the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.
The Group expects to have sufficient funds AREEBEHRZEETHRES B AR D HIE
to meet its financial obligations when they fall EBNEBYKEE -
due.
In the management of the liquidity risk, EEEBRHESREE THE  ANEEER
the Group monitors and maintains a level REEHEEBAATEZRE MR SE
of cash and cash equivalents deemed 1818 B BY7KF LA B AN 5= [B] 25 P il
adequate by management to finance the BMERSREEHNTZE - AEBKR
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects EEZEEREZEMRIBETEE -
of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group will
consider raising bank borrowings when it is
necessary.
Liquidity table REBEE &
The following table details the Group’s TRFAIAREENHBEEBEZHRTAH
remaining contractual maturity for its financial B HAIE R o 3R TH IR IR AN & B 72 7] BE 11
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based EREEVEAENRFT A2 RAR
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial WEmEmEE] -
liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay.
Less than
3 months Total
PR=@EA Bt
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TET TER
As at 31st December, 2017 i tfﬁ‘l' A=+—-H
Trade and other payables ENESERREMEREKR 10,360 10,360
As at 31st December, 2016 R-T— /\i‘l‘ A=+—H
Trade and other payables FE B 5 R 2R H A0 e BR X 10,353 10,353
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R B IRAREE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of

financial instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments
are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of
these financial instruments are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs
used).

6. TRIT H »

(c) eI RAZATEFE

AEERLIERTARSREHRERA
FEMAE TREHREBENIMNBEEXS
EWMITAZAFEGHZMERNMG
BRI MEARE) WEFR -

Listed equity securities in
Hong Kong with fair value
as at 31st December

R+=A=+-8
BEELTRAZS 2NV E
2017 2016 Valuation
—E-tF —E-RE Fair value techniques
Financial assets HK$’ 000 HK$'000 hierarchy and key inputs
BREE TER THET ALERE FRERARIEBAYE
Held-for-trading investments 57,287 27,369 Level 1 Quoted prices in an active
HERE 55—  market
RGBT 5 RE
Available-for-sale investments 733,165 516,000 Level 1 Quoted prices in an active
ARHERE F—H  market
RGBT 52 BB
790,452 543,369

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has no financial instruments measured at fair
value classified as Level 2 or 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and
2 in both years.

Except the financial assets that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis, the Directors
of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair
values.

RBEHR  AEBVED DBE/RFER
PIZE_RE=RZAFEAEZERIA -

RREFE  F—REF -2 HELEERS -

BRREEUEEEURAFEFEZHBEE
S RRBEFERR - NEEA W RR AR
RLUBEERMGABZ REERZEL QY
EHE -
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e KM
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 =—ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE
7. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM 7. BREWZBERKA
OPERATIONS AND REVENUE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FET AT
Sales of properties HEYE 1,506 3,207
Leasing of properties B Y 763 474
REVENUE WA 2,269 3,681
Sale proceeds from disposal of HEFERE ZHEWRR
held-for-trading investments 48,970 573,615
Dividend income from available-for- AfEHERE ZREW A
sale investments 86,000 38,220
Dividend income from held-for- HFEREZRERKA
trading investments 2,858 18,016
GROSS PROCEEDS FROM KIS EE
OPERATIONS 140,097 633,532
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. nEEH

AEBERETIELERKE  HARAZH
TES EHZEREEBERDELKRR
A ZERMIER 2 2 ERBENRMT

The Group’s operating and reportable segments,
based on information reported to the chief
operating decision makers, the Executive Directors
of the Company, for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment are as
follows:

MEBRRKRE — HERLEME

Property Development - sales and leasing of

and Investment properties
Securities Trading - dealings in BHEERRE — BEEFERER
and Investment held-for-trading At ERE

investments and
available-for-sale
investments
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

R B IRAREE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

8. 7HEER»

(Continued)
Property Securities
Development Trading
and Investment  and Investment Total
NERRE #HH5EE
RERE REE Hst
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
TER TER TET
2017 Bt
Gross proceeds from operations E& W A%H
- segment revenue -ERA 2,269 137,828 140,097
Results £
Segment profit SEEF 320 92,975 93,205
Other income Hib g A 8,980
Unallocated expenses AFRERAX (8,689)
Share of results of an associate EE—FBENRAER 177,992
Profit before taxation BR 1 A0 F 271,578
2016 NS
Gross proceeds from operations 4% % Uy & % 58
- segment revenue -2 ERA 3,681 629,851 633,532
Results £
Segment profit kgl 1,131 139,028 140,159
Other income Hig A 12,802
Unallocated expenses FFREAX (20,821)
Share of results of an associate BlE—FBENr%E 187,883
Profit before taxation o F B Al 320,023

Except for the presentation of segment revenue
which is different from the reported revenue in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in Note 3. For details of reconciliation
of segment revenue to the Group’s revenue of
HK$2,269,000 (2016: HK$3,681,000), please refer
to Note 7. Segment profits represent the results
of each segment without allocation of central
administrative costs including depreciation of
leasehold land and building for corporate function,
directors’ salaries, share of results of an associate
and other income. This is the measure reported
to the Executive Directors for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.

BRoOBBABSGEBESERTFHREKAZ
E2HHFRTRI  BEDE 2 SR EN
AT AREZ 2 BRAR - D EKRA
HRZN 22 @ U A 2,269,000/ 7T (ZF — N4 ¢
3,681,000/ L) < HERF B HNM 557 - 2
¥RFESHIEER  WEEFAFRITH
RA(BIERECEfEzHELHRETF
ZIE) BRFHFM EBE—FRBERAEE
REMBA - L TIRAATESREE RO
MEBTHZFE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—+ &+ _A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

8. 7HEER»

(Continued)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets IWTAREBIZRE ISP ZEERERE
and liabilities by reportable segments: LT
Property Securities
Development Trading
and Investment  and Investment Total
MERE EHEE
R&E kkE @
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
TER TER TER
2017 “E-t%
Assets BE
Segment assets PEEE 56,231 836,032 892,263
Interest in an associate NN ANEIWA - oy 975,284
Unallocated assets AFPEEE 1,253,546
Consolidated total assets DEBEE 3,121,093
Liabilities g8f
Segment liabilities PEEE 15,520 - 15,520
Unallocated liabilities AFPEEE 147,166
Consolidated total liabilities DABAR 162,686
2016 “T-RF
Assets BE
Segment assets PREE 53,169 588,769 641,938
Interest in an associate R—RBENR 2 ER 921,610
Unallocated assets LB EE 1,186,928
Consolidated total assets RABEE 2,750,471
Liabilities a8f
Segment liabilities PEAR 18,369 - 18,369
Unallocated liabilities FFoEakE 155,250
Consolidated total liabilities RABEE 173,619
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between
segments:

all assets are allocated to reportable
segments other than leasehold land and
buildings for corporate function, interest in an
associate, deferred tax assets, cash and bank
balances, prepaid tax and other receivables
and prepayments for corporate function; and

all liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments other than tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities and other payables and accruals for

8. 7HEER»

BEEREE®

RTEENBERZOBRARIEER

o KRFEEMEZHETHEET K-
REtE QR s  REHRBREE - #
& MIRITHER  RNHEMEDRREINEE
Z E A EWR R M TR SRS - FrB B
ENDREERENE R

e KBREMBE EERBRBENMEEERD
B2 B A FE N AR X TR EE SRS © PR A

BEBHREESBREHME -

corporate function.

OTHER INFORMATION

Hitb &

Property Securities
Development Trading
and Investment  and Investment Total
MERR BHEE
kRE RERE @t
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER TER TET
Amounts included in the measure = AEHE 5 Bk Fl 5K
of segment profits or segment DEEENFUE :
assets:
2017 “E—tE
Depreciation of property, plant and 1% - BERHFENE
equipment 16 - 16
2016 ZE-RE
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #1% - BERFEHTE
equipment 16 - 16
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—+ &+ _A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Revenue From Major Products and
Services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue

from its major products and services:

8.

THEHER @

TEEMRBRBWA

NTARAREBEZERMRBWAZ D

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE-RF

HK$’ 000 HK$’000

F&RT FET

Sales of properties HEYE 1,506 3,207
Leasing of properties B Y 763 474
2,269 3,681

Geographical Information

HESEER

REBZEBUREL  RFIRFEAM -

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong,
Macau and the Mainland China.

AEBEAYMELE R B BEZ R 2 5N
HEWAFIWNT - FEREEMAEN (B
RBMEARSEZHWR) BN ZIERDEE
(TEEEEHAEERAHRHERE) EH
TRFESIEAT

The Group’s revenue from external customers
is based on the location of properties sold and
leased out and information about its non-current
assets (excluding deferred tax assets and
available-for-sale investments) by geographical
location of the assets (including the operation of
the associate) are detailed below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

HIMNEE WA EREBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF ZE—+tF T —RF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET F&T FET F& T
Hong Kong 58 - - 302 453
Macau B - - 33,547 34,442
The Mainland China AR B A 3 2,269 3,681 975,288 921,615
2,269 3,681 1,009,137 956,510
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e MR RME
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #EZ=F—+tF+—A=+—HIFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. 7HERw
(Continued)
Information about Major Customers FEEFER
For the year ended 31st December, 2017, revenue BE—_ZE—tHF+_A=1+—"HIEFE K
from a single customer in property development BEMEZEREENHEZE—RBEZIRALE
and investment segment amounted to HK$763,000 763,000/ 7T (E AR &£ E 4B U A 4933.63% °
which contributed to approximately 33.63% of the
Group’s total revenue.
For the year ended 31st December, 2016, no HE_Z— "+ A=+—"8B1-5%E ' #
revenue from transactions with a single external EREE—INLEERHZ WAL REE U
customer amounted to 10% or more of the AZ10%sk A E °
Group’s revenue.
OTHER INCOME 9. Hfzlg A
Other income included interest income of H fth U A B 15 F) B Uk A8,933,0008 T (=&
HK$8,933,000 (2016: HK$12,696,000). — 74 1 12,696,000/ 7T) °©
TAXATION 10. Hi 18
2017 2016
—EB-tF “EAE
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TET TAET
Current tax: AHFIE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNER 7 2,790
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax B A D E T S 1,044 1,202
Mainland China Land Appreciation Tax (‘LAT”) B (it + i 32 B /i 424 650
Mainland China Withholding Tax F A 3t AR B A A 9,770 3,500
Overprovision in prior years: BEFEBEBEE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEMR (20) (2
11,225 8,140
Deferred tax (credit) charge (Note 24) BT (Fh) A (ME24) (20,968) 6,033
Total tax (credit) charge for the year AEEHE(HEL) A BE (9,743) 14,173

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the assessable profit for both years.

The income tax rate of the Mainland China
subsidiaries for the year ended 31st December,
2017 is 25% (2016: 25%).

ZMEFEZBENERAERZHRSF
JZ & SR M i A #916.5% o

RAEBRZHBAREBE —T—tF+ =

A=+ —BUHFEZMEHREA25%(ZF
— N 1 25%) o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 =—ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

10. TAXATION (Continued) 10. ﬁ IE (4&)

AR E 7 BRI ST B

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the

E\TEEE’%ZBﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁT&

103

profit before taxation (excluding share of results of (T BEEL—REE RN R EE) 2 YR
an associate) per the consolidated statement of T
profit or loss as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tf —T-REF
HK$’ 000 HK$’'000
TERT FTAET
Profit before taxation (excluding share of BB AR (T BIEEE
results of an associate) —REENRER) 93,586 132,140
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax A Wiﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂfxﬁ$
at the tax rate of 25% (2016: 25%) 5% (=B — A4 25%) 23,307 33,035
Tax effect of income not taxable for /,\?%WRJ%U\Z
tax purpose Bispe (23,008) (16,353)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible Gk %RSEHjZ
for tax purpose M2 531 2,804
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERT IE' BEIHBEYE 933 64
Utilisation of tax losses previously not EE LRI AR
recognised MIBERE - (13,981)
Overprovision of current tax in prior years BEFEARHIEL
TR (20) (2)
Overprovision of deferred tax in prior years — BEFEERELEHRIEZ
TR (19,995) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEERKE 2K B
operating in other jurisdictions RETRAREzZE (4) (1,438)
Mainland China LAT B A bt 3 32 B B 424 650
Deferred tax on undistributed earnings PR A DR 2 A DR
of a Mainland China associate B EE ZERERIE 8,899 9,394
Tax (credit) charge for the year AEEHE (E2) X H (9,743) 14,173

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note

24.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —F—+ &+ _A=+—HIFE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1. EERF
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FERT T T
Profit for the year has been arrived FEmME kK
at after charging:
Staff costs 8 TR A 3,500 2,911
Retirement benefits scheme RIRERIET B 2 7K
contributions 38 36
Total staff costs (including Directors’ B TR A4t
emoluments) (BRESMe) 3,538 2,947
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR N & 1,088 1,092
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERZEITE
equipment 1,047 1,047
Written-off property, plant and MSEME - BB k&
equipment 2 _
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mRE R AR MIEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—+ &+ _A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND R.ESREEMNE
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM <
The emoluments paid or payable to each BHE-_ZE—+tFRER-_ZE—X~F+_-H
Director for the year ended 31st December, —t+—HLtFEEENENTFTRESEZ
2017 and 2016 are set out below: [ N

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefits Total
and other scheme emoluments
Fees benefits contributions 2017
E74 =1 EBHRER —E—+F
Name of Director BEENS Be R EAEF HEPAs A &msE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FET FET FET
Non-executive Chairman FEHTEE
Liu Ying 2 1% = = = =
Resigned Non-executive ~ BHEFH T
Chairman i
Ge Peijian 2k = = - -
Executive Directors HITEE
Hsu Feng ® M = - - -
Albert Tong % T A - 952 18 970
Wang Fahua FEE - - - -
Fan Suxia LTEE - 941 18 959
Non-executive Director  #HITES
Sung Tze-Chun RUE - - - -
Independent BAEHT
Non-executive Directors EE
Liang Jung-chi 2P 94 - - 94
Zhang Hong Bin BRI 117 - - 117
Sit Hing Kwok 3 112 - - 112
323 1,893 36 2,252
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R B IRAREE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —F—+ &+ _A=+—HIFE

(Continueq)

12. DIRECTORS’ AND REEREEME @
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continueq) (a) EEM <
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits Total
and other scheme emoluments
Fees benefits  contributions 2016
S - ERL BKEH —E-RF
Name of Director EEMA we R E 4t 18 7 BE PN [k
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET FET FHET FET
Non-executive Chairman JEHTEE
Ge Peijian 2 - - - -
Executive Directors HITES
Hsu Feng ® 1 = = = =
Albert Tong % 1 (Al - 921 18 939
Wang Fahua FEE = = = =
Fan Suxia LEE - 917 18 935
Non-executive Director ¥ #HTES
Sung Tze-Chun RME - - - -
Independent BYEHT
Non-executive Directors E%
Liang Jung-chi PEE 87 - - 87
Zhang Hong Bin W) 113 - - 113
Sit Hing Kwok B 6 [ 107 = = 107
307 1,838 36 2,181

No Director waived any emoluments for either
year.

No inducement was paid or payable to
Directors for joining or upon joining the
Company.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the
Group. The Independent Non-executive
Directors’ emoluments shown above were
their remuneration as Directors of the
Company.

Other than the Directors listed above, there
was no senior management of the Company
entitled to any emoluments for either year.

RBEFEABMEESNERETMAME -

BESMARRB RN IMARR RS M
EENAEMNEAER -

tRRTES MR BEEEREEAE
B = 75 P iR () BR 7S 1 ST AN o LAt B 7 FE A
TEEZMERUBEEEARARARNEFTHNR
B -

RMEFER @b L EEIN
BREREAEWBRERME -

RI:: 2 N/NC]
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mRE R AR MIEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—+ &+ _A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

During the year, the five highest paid
individuals of the Group included two (2016:
three) Directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. For
the remaining three (2016: two) highest paid
individuals, their individual emoluments do
not exceed HK$1,000,000 each and are as

REEREEME

b) EBEESHFMAL

RAFE  REBERMN&K

= o

= /T

MALE

ERE(CE—ARF  ZR)EE FSE
ZHEER EXATHARE - T=%4
(ZE—RF WMB)EaFTHMALTSE
2 H BB i81,000,0008 7T - HEB&

BT :

follows:

2017 2016
—F—tF CZT—RF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FET FHT

Salaries, allowances and other FN - F B & H At 48 F
benefits 1,284 766

Retirement benefits scheme RIRFEFETE] 2 (K

contributions 2 -
1,286 766
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 &2 —=

13. DIVIDEND

14

The Directors recommend payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.045 (2016: HK$0.05) per share
amounting to approximately HK$117,385,000 for
the year ended 31st December, 2017, subject to
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

In June 2017, a dividend of HK$0.05 per share
amounting to approximately HK$130,427,000 in
aggregate was paid to shareholders as the final
dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2016.

In June 2016, a dividend of HK$0.02 per share
amounting to approximately HK$52,171,000 in
aggregate was paid to shareholders as the final
dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2015.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is
based on the Group’s profit attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31st December,
2017 of HK$281,142,000 (2016: HK$305,586,000)
and on the number of 2,608,546,511 (2016:
2,608,546,511) shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as
there was no dilutive ordinary share outstanding
during both years.

13.

14,

A BTSRRI
& CF = A =Nl
iz B
BEERIKNEE_E—t+tF+-_A=+—
BEFEZABPREER0.045F T (=ZF
—NF 1 0.05%70) A H#4117,385,0007%8
To-MAFKREREERRBFERS Lt
B HAHEE °
RZE—LtFNABERZEHZE T —F

+—A=+—BIFE 2 RXHAKEFH0.05
7 IT & £ #49130,427,0007 7T T IR o

":‘7@ /\ﬂz/\ﬂalﬁgﬁéﬁi—v ﬂﬂi
A=+—BItFE 2 REK B FAX0.02
& 4952, 171,000 7T TR ©

N7

BERAER

EREXBANIIEBAEERHRE_ZT
—+EF+-_A=+—"BILFEFEARQA#E
fﬁﬁﬁ)\%1&5&%U281,142,000;\%ﬁ(:
T —NF 305586000}%7%)&$WZE
§§17H§§K2608546511Hx( T —NF:
2,608,546,5110%) &

HRZMEFERNLED ZRTAIHTER
B MU T2 GREFRAN -
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RE IR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HZEZ ==

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND

—tF+_A=1+—HILEE

15. % BMERKE

EQUIPMENT
Land Furniture
and and Motor
buildings  equipment vehicle Total
THEEF BRRRE AE BE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FER FEn FER FER
COST B AR
At 1st January, 2016 R-E—RE—F—H 9,598 1,079 755 11,432
Exchange realignment I 5 R - (4) - (4)
At 31st December, 2016 N_E—RF+ZA=T—H 9,598 1,075 755 11,428
Written-off Wi - (18) - (18)
Exchange realignment PE 5 A - 4 - 4
At 31st December, 2017 —T—+tF+ZA=1—H 9,598 1,061 755 11,414
DEPRECIATION nE
At 1st January, 2016 RZZE—R"E—HA—H 3,199 697 151 4,047
Provided for the year FERNRE 707 189 151 1,047
Exchange realignment i AR - (3) - (3)
At 31st December, 2016 RZE-—RF+_A=1+—H 3,906 883 302 5,091
Provided for the year FREE 707 189 151 1,047
Elimination on written-off R B 4 8 - (16) = (16)
Exchange realignment fE 5 A - 9 _ 2
At 31st December, 2017 —+%+=-A=1+—H 4,613 1,058 453 6,124
CARRYING VALUES SREE
At 31st December, 2017 R=-ZE—-t&+=-A=+—-H 4,985 3 302 5,290
At 31st December, 2016 R-_B-—R"FE+-_A=+—H 5,692 192 453 6,337

For the land and buildings, within which carrying
value of HK$138,000 (2016: HK$154,000) are
freehold land and buildings and HK$4,847,000
(2016: HK$5,538,000) are leasehold land and
buildings under short-term lease. All land and

buildings are located outside Hong Kong.

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1| JAI 5[ %5 BR A &)
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R B SRR FEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The cost and carrying value of the Group’s
investment property at 31st December, 2017
and 2016 were HK$28,563,000. The investment
property is a piece of freehold land located in
Macau.

The development controls of the investment
property are subject to change with reference
to revised planning directives under “Urban
redevelopment programme of the Northern
District of Taipa Area” drawn up by the Land,
Public Works and Transport Bureau of Macau
in November 2013. Should the said plan be
implemented, there will be an increase in plot ratio
of the investment property. The fair value of the
Group’s investment property at 31st December,
2017 was estimated as HK$669,000,000 (2016:
HK$627,000,000).

The investment property is categorised as Level 3
under the fair value measurement hierarchy. There
was no transfer into and out of Level 3 during
the year. The fair value has been arrived at using
direct comparison approach carried out by an
independent valuer not connected with the Group.
The valuation was determined by reference to
comparable sales transactions with due allowance
for estimated construction costs that will be
expended to carry out the development and the
estimated developer’s profit margin. There has
been no change of the valuation technique used in
the prior year.

The highest and best use for the investment
property is development of residential property
and the Group will explore feasible plans to fully
realise the development potential of the investment

property.

16. BEWHE

AEBZREDER_T—LtFR_-F
—ARFT A=+ —HRZERAREREER
28,563,000 7T - ZREME R — RN IR
FIUKARER B 2 L1t -

ZEREMEZERESBLRBBMA LT
BKEGRR T —=F+— A%l 2(&F
ItEEBHCBEETEET)BE T ZEERR
B3R T LAEE o i Lzt 8 FAEIT » %
BEMEBEMBEL R MR T —+tF
+TZAZ+—B AEELREVEZRF
{& 5 51 /£669,000,0008 7t (= F — /N 4F :
627,000,000/ 7T) °

REMERNTEFESEOERE=R -
FRALEYEBAE=RXEE=REL -
RN ETY IR BN B B E 2 S L ERD
REAZERLBEETE - BRAMBEDN2EA
ELBZHER S Kt ARRER 2G5
BEXRNEEERER  URBFHEEEBZ
BENBEEMERE - ERZEERMEEE

BEMEL BBRBEEAEBEEETY
¥ AEEBRN T2 EAE R ERK
REMEZHEES -
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RE IR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HZEZ ==

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

—tF+_A=1+—HILEE

1T R—ZFBEEQNTZER

2017 2016
—B—tF —TAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
TERT FAT
Cost of investment in an associate R—RKEEE R R 2 HEK AR 214,224 214,224
Share of post-acquisition profits, FEAG W BB 18 3 T
net of dividends received (& EH&ZHX 2) 696,357 713,765
Exchange difference arising from BE - EE N R R EAL
translation of an associate 2 IEH bk - 64,703 (6,379)
975,284 921,610
Details of the associate of the Group at 31st REBR -_Z—+tFER-_ZT—NE+_-A
December, 2017 and 2016 are as follows: =+ —HBZBERRZFBET
Percentage
of interest in
registered capital
Place of and voting
Form of registration Paid up power indirectly
business and registered held by the  Principal
Name of associate structure operation capital Company activities
RARABERE
aMEER dfE AR R
BENTER EBGERKS  fEn¥ BREMER REZELE TIEXH
Shanghai Zhangjiang Sino-foreign Mainland RMB 37% Property development
Micro-electronics Port equity joint China 370,830,000 and investment
Co. Lid. venture
EERINETS PG ERE A, ARE 3% MEEERERE
BRAR 370,830,0007C

The principal activities of the associate are
property development and investment and it is

BENRIZEBXEBRMEERNMEE X

RAEER EET (B HIR

NERFRERITIS

MERER) 2RKEERE -BEQRAARS

the Group’s strategic investment in Shanghai,
especially in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park of Pudong

New Area. The associate enables the Group to

enhance exposure to the property market.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 1T R—XBEQR Z2EE W

(Continued)
The summarised financial information in respect of REBZHENR ZHBEER M T :
the Group’s associate is set out below:
The associate is accounted for using the equity NERE MR B E N5 AEZRIEALR o
method in these consolidated financial statements.
2017 2016
—E2—+tF —E—REF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Current assets MEEE
Properties held for sale FEME 302,844 1,466,488
Properties under development ERERAPE 24,036 18,915
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITHEH 2,304,319 2,535,502
Other current assets HEMmEEE 79,870 129,197
Total current assets BREEE 2,711,069 4,150,102
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,049,235 963,525
Current liabilities mEas
LAT payable JE A T IR E 910,949 547,511
Other current liabilities HiRsBE 213,452 2,075,278
Total current liabilities BEREAE 1,124,401 2,622,789
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - -
Net assets EEFE 2,635,903 2,490,838
Group’s share of net assets of REBELEES AR
the associate BEFE 975,284 921,610
Revenue WA 2,181,719 2,411,746
Profit for the year FE R A 481,060 507,793
Other comprehensive income FEEMEARE (FAX)
(expense) for the year 192,115 (150,543)
Total comprehensive income FETHEWEREE
for the year 673,175 357,250
Dividend received from the associate FABWEERRZRE
during the year 195,400 69,997
Group’s share of results of the FEANEBELBS A
associate for the year ZEB 177,992 187,883

Annual Report 2017 FEEFE

112



113

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HZEZ ==

—tF+_A=1+—HILEE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 1T R—FREBELTZER»
(Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial T B ER M EENGE T HERRARER
information to the carrying amount of the interest ZREEERNR 2 S REECHER
in the associate recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Net assets of the associate BE AR B EFE 2,635,903 2,490,838
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBRBENAZ
interest in the associate HEEEERLL D 37% 37%
Carrying amount of the Group’s REBEBRBE NG Z
interest in the associate FEZRBRME 975,284 921,610

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

18 AHHERE

INVESTMENTS
Available-for-sale investments as at 31st n= i_t%f}igfﬁﬁﬁ—'—:ﬂ =1T—FH
December, 2017 and 2016 comprise: ZARHER A B
2017 2016
—E—-tF ZZT—RF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Listed investment: LEHRE :
— equity securities listed in —REBLTZ
Hong Kong IR AN 38 25 733,165 516,000
Unlisted equity investments JEETMRAKZE 43,791 40,689
776,956 556,689

The listed equity investment represents 11.75%
(2016: 11.66%) of the ordinary shares of Tomson
Group Limited (“TGL”) which is a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and listed on
the Stock Exchange. Fair value of listed equity
investment has been determined by reference to
quoted market prices.

The unlisted equity investments represent
investments in private entities. They are measured
at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the Directors of
the Company are of the opinion that their values
cannot be measured reliably.

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1| JAI 5[ %5 BR A &)

Lt ARERSEEBARAR (GRS
] - — KRS S AL I B P
EizRR) BB Z11.75% (—F—RF:
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R B SRR FEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —F—+t &+ _—_A=+—HIFE

19. HELD-FOR-TRADING 19. FERE
INVESTMENTS
Held-for-trading investments represent equity FERERREAE LTESFMERZ -

securities listed in Hong Kong.

An analysis of held-for-trading investments at R_E—tFR_FE—RF+_A=1+—
31st December, 2017 and 2016 by industry H FEKERTESBEZ2HTWOT ¢
classification is set out below:

2017 2016

—E—tHF —E-RF

HK$’ 000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Real estate investment trust EHEKREETEES 23,059 15,732
Properties and construction M E R - 8,751
Financials TR 12,583 2,219
Conglomerates At 21,645 667
57,287 27,369

20. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 20. IRE& RIBITEER

Included in cash and bank balances are the ERERBITEHRABTE TN —EEEKT

following amounts denominated in a currency BENE2E ZEBUIIZESEELRMERE
other than the functional currency of the entities Thee g (BB L) :

(i.e. HKD) to which they relate:

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$’ 000 HK$’000

FHET F& T

RMB AR M 1,128 7,349
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RE IR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —F—+&+_A=+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Included in trade and other payables and accruals
are trade payables amounting to HK$24,000
(2016: HK$22,000) and their aged analysis based
on invoice date as at the end of the reporting

Q. BNEZRR - HiEM R
R AR FKIE

ERMNE SRR - AR RRRFBARRA
NE RN B 5 BRH24,0008 T (ZF—X
% :22,00087T) - MERHERRBIEER
BEIZRREEDTANE ¢

period is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tfF —ZT— X
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FHET FH&IT
0 — 3 months T ={@A7 - 22
Over 1 year —F L 24 -
24 22
22. SHARE CAPITAL 22, f% A%
Number of Carrying
shares value
B EE BRHEE
HK$’ 000
FHExT
At 1st January, 2016, RZZE—RFE—H—AH"
31st December, 2016 and —E—RF+=A
31st December, 2017 =t—BER-_ZT—+tF
+=-—A=+—8H
- Ordinary shares with no par value —EEHESRRK 2,608,546,511 442,244

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1| JAI 5[ %5 BR A &)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B SRR FEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

23. RELATED AND CONNECTED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group and the Company
entered into the following significant transactions
with related and connected parties:

(a) Compensation of key
management personnel

WBHEEFRBEEALIRS

ARERAARERFERBEN RBEA
tEUTEENRS |

(a) TEEEAEME

The remuneration of Directors during the year REBEEMESWHOT :
was as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
THET TET
Short-term benefits 52 HR 1R A 2,216 2,145
Post-employment benefits EIREF 36 36
2,252 2,181

Emoluments payable to the Directors of the
Company are determined by the Board or its
committee with reference to market terms,
individual responsibilities and performance.

(b) Sharing of administrative
expense

A substantial shareholder of the Company
together with her close family members
control TGL and that substantial shareholder
has significant influence over the Company.
Accordingly, TGL is considered as a related
party of the Company. The Company has
entered into an arrangement with TGL,
pursuant to which the Group was allowed to
use the office premises and administrative
resources of TGL in Hong Kong. In return, the
Company is required to share an attributable
portion of the administrative cost of TGL on a
cost basis.

During the year ended 31st December, 2017,
the administrative cost of TGL shared by
the Company amounted to approximately
HK$4,984,000 (2016: HK$4,866,000). As
at 31st December, 2017, no outstanding
balance (2016: Nil) was owed to TGL.

Under the Listing Rules, TGL is an associate
of a substantial shareholder of the Company.
The above transaction constitutes a continuing
connected transaction but is exempted from
disclosure and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing
Rules.

XNTFARBAEENME IHEZHK
HBETZZBE2EMSHMKT - @
MALTZBERREMEE -

TRETRER

BEEEHARA—UETBRRRER
MR M2 EERREARRFAE
AEEN B SREEREBEAR
Al ZBE)y - ARRIE SR EEF] Y —
AR B ASBEREERSZES
BEBEZHAENERITRER M
MR - RRAVBERUIRRANEED 2
ZREEETHRERZ 85 -

REBECETARR) - GREESARRZ
—UERRRIBEAL - UEX5RE
RIFERERS - HERRETC TR
Q)2 BB RBILIRRAAEZRE °
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 =—ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE
23. RELATED AND CONNECTED WB.HAEFRBEALIRE @

PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(c) ENEZRN - HttENFERAK

(c) Trade and other payables and

accruals

As at 31st December, 2017, included in
the consolidated financial statements under
trade and other payables and accruals, was
an amount of approximately HK$10,274,000
(2016: HK$10,274,000) due to a non-controlling
shareholder with significant influence over

ﬁﬁ?f)\

W_E—+F+_A=1+—8 &%&H4
Hﬁ&&%zﬁﬁf’i%ﬁ%m H b e ER
/T)\&J—‘EHE'iHIE‘:P B —%%910,274,000
BT (ZZ— /N 10,274,000 7T) fE
NTFEARRE —RMB AR ATITHEEKR
HEZIFTERBRFERKRIE - ZERES

EER 2O NEBEERD -

a subsidiary of the Company. The amount
is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
repayment terms.

24. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)
LIABILITIES

ELERE(EE)RE

The followings are the deferred tax (assets) AT RIEAHRE R BEREHEARE

liabilities recognised by the Group and movement ERAZEERIB(EE) BERHEZE
thereon during the current and prior reporting
periods:
Undistributed
earnings of
Mainland
Tax effect China’s
on LAT associate Total
PE R
T EER BENAZ
ZHBEE AP KB @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
THET THERT TERT
At 1st January, 2016 R-B-AF-A—H (16,245) 47,056 30,811
Charged to consolidated REaBaknk

statement of profit or loss 139 9,394 9,533
Credited to consolidated statement 3 {5 A B P 3t i 40 48 5 5

of profit or loss upon the Mainland st A& B *

China withholding tax paid = (3,500) (3,500)
Exchange realignment P 5 AR 782 - 782
At 31st December, 2016 —E—RF

—A=+- (15,324) 52,950 37,626
(Credited) charged to consolidated aEREGIA) Mk

statement of profit or loss (102) 8,899 8,797
Credited to consolidated statement 3 5t o B py 31 i 5. #0400 B s

of profit or loss upon the Mainland st A& EH R

China withholding tax paid - (9,770) (9,770)
Overprovision in prior years BEEERERE = (19,995) (19,995)
Exchange realignment fE 5, (1,168) - (1,168)
At 31st December, 2017 R-B—-+¥

+ZB=+-H (16,594) 32,084 15,490
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —F—+t &+ _—_A=+—HIFE

24. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)

LIABILITIES (Continued)

4 EEBIR (BE) BEw

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax B RE BB IEZEERIBLES S TN
balances for financial reporting purposes: T :

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$’ 000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Deferred tax assets RIEF IR E B (16,594) (15,324)
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIAE E 32,084 52,950
15,490 37,626

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$28,276,000 (2016: HK$24,543,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of these tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are
losses of approximately HK$1,490,000 that will
expire on or before 31st December, 2020 (2016:
HK$1,504,000 that will expire on or before 31st
December, 2019). Other losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

No liability has been recognised in respect of the
amount of distributable earnings of the Group’s
Mainland China subsidiaries because the Group is
in a position in control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that
such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

RBREBR - NEE ] B EEHE KK EF
2 A AT IEE B4 528,276,000 T (=&
— 7N 1 24,543,000 L) c B AR Z &
FIEELATER  BIERTIEEERERBELEMN
BEE ABRAREEBBEBEEBR-_Z=
EE+-_A=1+—HHZAEHPZEEY
1,490,000/ 7T (==& — /X F : 1,504,000/
TER—_Z—NF+-_A=t+—HzxZmE
H) - HfbES B FERBLESE -

WERAEEN B A2 B LRE 2D
KBNS EERRE  RASKKEREHE
HEBEERER2BOER BREBEERA
EET SR BB REE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —F—+&+_A=+—HIFE

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 5. B IR fET &

A share option scheme was adopted by the
Company pursuant to a resolution passed on
1st June, 2012 (the “2012 Scheme”). The 2012
Scheme was set up for the primary purpose to
provide incentives or rewards to selected persons
for their contribution to the Group or any entity
in which the Group holds any equity interest
(“Invested Entity”). Subject to earlier termination by
the Company in general meeting or by the Board,
the 2012 Scheme shall be valid and effective till
31st May, 2022. After the expiry of such valid
period, no further options will be offered or granted
but in all other respects the provisions of the 2012
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant
options to (i) any employee or proposed employee
(whether full time or part time) of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity, including any
executive director of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; or (i) any non-executive
director (including independent non-executive
director) of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; or (iii) any customer of or supplier
of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; or (iv) any adviser
or consultant of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; or (v) any person or entity
that provides research, development or other
technological support to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; or (vi) any shareholder of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or
any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity.

The maximum number of shares of the Company
in respect of which options may be granted under
the 2012 Scheme is not permitted to exceed
260,854,651 shares, being 10% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as
at 31st December, 2017, unless shareholders’
approval of the Company has been obtained. The
total number of shares of the Company issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted to each participant (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at the date of grant (the “Individual Limit”). Any
further grant of options in excess of the Individual
Limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval
in general meeting of the Company with such
participant and his or her associates abstaining
from voting.
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ARARBEBE-_ZT——F A —BBBAR
AEREMN—EEREFE (22 —Z=F5
2l) RUY—ZT——FHENTIEZBAWRA
METBE ATHAEB S AEBRFHEM
IR EMgE ((FriIRERE]) 2 ERE
BBk EEE o HARQ AW EAEBRRAS IR
BRIINEERITERERIEZTE  =F
——FFHEEAERE S FRA=+—
HiE - REXBEREBETSHETIRERT
ERLERE T —FHENGERE
EMm& T mEEEEEA M -

RE-_ZF——_F58 EFRARNUTAL
R BAE : () AEBEEAKE QR HER
PIREREZEMREEXERE (THER
B BEAEBEEMANKE AFSHEM
PR ERE ZEAATES @ K()AKEIE
Ak B A B AR PR & i < I 31T
EX (BRERBUIIFRTES) : K(i) AEEE
AR EBRBRERMARERBE ZEMEFP K
AAREEAKE R R RERMAIRERIBR
HEDHRS < HEE « K(v) ARBERK
B QB ATRERE 2 AR
A Sk(v) MASKEEAKE QRS ER
BREMT  AEIEMRMEZEMA
TR S(vi) R BT B R R S
PR EMB 2 EARR  AKEEAKE
NAR M RERBRBETEMNES 2T
[EESTEPANE

BRIEEARRBREZIE  BIE-_T——F
BRI RN 2 BREMBET 2 ARRIRN &
SR8 4A B 1] #B38260,854,6510% * BN —
TE—+F+ A=+ BARQARZEHTK
DB 210% BEZL2BEEHERHBER
BEBILEIM+_EARN ERERBERZ
BE (BREEBITEREBRITES) FUITE
MEETREETZARB RGO AL 58
BEHBREZAZARREEITROHEE
21% ([MARI ER]) - M2 EEBITREY
B fE R LR IR - RIBEREEARRD
AIREARE EHiE MEBLEEREBE
ATHEBEES EREREZRE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —F—+t &+ _—_A=+—HIFE

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(Continued)

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option
must be made within 28 days from the date on
which such offer is made with a non-refundable
payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the
Company by way of a consideration for the grant
thereof. An option may be exercised at any time
during a period as the Board may determine which
shall not be more than 10 years commencing
from the date of grant of the option. Save as
determined by the Board and stated in the offer of
the relevant options, there is no minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. The subscription price of a share of
the Company in respect of any option that may
be granted under the 2012 Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall
determine, save that such price will not be less
than the higher of (i) closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of granting the
option, which must be a business day and (ii) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
5 business days immediately preceding the date of
offer of granting the option.

No options were granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed under the 2012 Scheme during the
year ended 31st December, 2017 and 2016. No
options were outstanding under the 2012 Scheme
at 1st January, 2017 and 31st December, 2017.

25, BB IR REST 8l )

AR AARREZRRDBREZ AEGF =T\
AARRELZEABRE  YRAARBZH1E
T ERERTRREZNAE - WFEKD
ARE - BEREREESBEE R BE AR
Rr1TME - X I NS B 1% i BE i A B
AEBTF BREZRZBRELREAM
BERRBESRARAEEEIN  LERER
BAETTE 2 AL AR B &ARY - RIE=
T FFEA FRENEMAERENS -
ARREBRBONORBERSHESTRHEEE
E o MEZRBBENFERO)REZ R DB
EH(WARERR) AR MEBRMERAN
FIZR DRI 2 Wi B Ko (i) R IR BR R IR h
BB AfESR ATl T HRE
RFFFIARBIRMHKRTEZ FHE  MEZ

RE-_ZT——F5i8 REE-T—LtFK
TE-RETA=THIEFEAR - I E
BARERDL - BITE - EHEIKRR - RIEZ
T-_FHE R-_TE—ttF-A-HBEZ
E—+tF+-_A=1+—H WERERKTE
ZFERHE o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —F—+&+_A=+—HIFE

26. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

27

SCHEMES

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) established
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance in November 2002. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the
rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and the
employees are obliged to make contributions at
the specified rate under the MPF Scheme.

The contributions arising from the MPF Scheme
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represent contributions paid and payable to
the MPF Scheme by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees in the Mainland China are
members of respective state-managed defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes operated
by the local government. The employer and the
employees are obliged to make contributions at a
certain percentage of the payroll under rules of the
schemes. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits schemes is to
make the specified contributions.

MAJOR NON-CASH
TRANSACTION

For the year ended 31st December, 2017,
the Group elected to receive scrip dividends
of approximately HK$69,731,000 (2016:
HK$34,099,000) in lieu of cash dividends from the
Group’s available-for-sale investments in TGL.

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1| JAI 5[ %5 BR A &)
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27.

iR K48 7 5 2

AEER-_ZZE_F+— AREFE(ARH
MERAEEAEGI2E -—HRGIEIES
e (TREEstE]) - BESsElcEER
AEEZBENRATA LA —BIETA
AESHAETE - RIEBERFEZRA
BENEEHARTRBESSIFIANLL
TAEH K

REFBIRBERMBF 2 LS 5t 8 2 BT
EASEZEESERANFTAZLREN
KN TRiE a8 2 5K

AREEZ P E R EE S & E R T BT &
W2 Bl R B FE B FOR K68 M ET &2 X
8 - RIFEFTER[A BEREEHEEER
FEIETEDLERHZK -  AREHRZ
FRABN B ZE— B ERIELATRMER

TEFRERS

BE-_ZTZ—+E+-_A=+—BHILtFEE -
7R £ [ 5 12 W ER LA IR R B 4969,731,000/%8 7T
(ZZT— 754 : 34,099,000 7T) AR B AR E
EzAEERE - FEEEZRERE -



28. COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES

COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31st December, 2017

DA B AR R

RZF—+F+—-H=+—H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M IEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —ZF—tF+—_A=+—HIFE

28. N E MR R K AR

2017 2016
—E—tF T KF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FET T& T

Non-current Assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KRB - -
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZZE 1,780 1,780
1,780 1,780

Current Assets REEE
Held-for-trading investments FERE 53,418 17,160
Other receivables and prepayments H b & U BR SR R TR B 1,150 1,507
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE W Fft /B 2 B 5B 507,365 200,154
Cash and bank balances H 4 NIRITLE 5 722,669 576,510
1,284,602 795,331
Current Liabilities REBEE

Accruals TE IR FKIE 983 1,004
Amounts due to subsidiaries JFE 11 B /B A &) FX B 4,231 165,749
5,214 166,753
Net Current Assets RBEERE 1,279,388 628,578
Total Assets less Current Liabilities #EERTBHERE 1,281,168 630,358

Capital and Reserves BEXREGFE
Share capital [N 442,244 442,244
Reserves EEE 838,924 188,114
Total Equity R 1,281,168 630,358

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 16th March, 2018 and are signed on

its behalf by:

Liu Ying
2 &
Chairman

e

Albert Tong

B
Director

EF
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —F—+&+_A=+—HIFE

28. COMPANY'’S STATEMENT OF 2. XN R EMRREKEHEE o
FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES (continueq)

MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY'’S KATRZ@ERE
RESERVES
Retained
profits
R BER
HK$’ 000
FHERT
THE COMPANY FiN/NE |
Balance at 1st January, 2016 RZE—XR"F—A—B#&% 71,074
Dividend paid KT AR B (62,171)
Profit for the year F % A 169,211
Balance at 31st December, 2016 RZE—RFE+ZA=+—H#&s 188,114
Dividend paid A AR 2, (130,427)
Profit for the year FEm A 781,237
Balance at 31st December, 2017 R-EB—tHE+-A=+—B#&8 838,924
At the end of the reporting period, the Company RMEBR ARQRAEEATH DR
had distributable reserves of approximately 5 49838,924,0008 7t ( =& — KN &F :
HK$838,924,000 (2016: HK$188,114,000). 188,114,000/ 7T) °

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 1| JAI 5[ %5 BR A &)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —F—+t &+ _—_A=+—HIFE

29. GENERAL INFORMATION OF 2. B AT 2 —RER

SUBSIDIARIES

R-FT—tE+=A=+—REHBARZ
BAEWT :

Details of subsidiaries at 31st December, 2017 are
as follows:

Proportion of
issued capital/
registered capital

Paid up issued

Place of ordinary share

incorporation capital/registered and voting power Principal
Name of subsidiary and operation capital held by the Company activities
BR ARRBHERA
Al K ERALER BE/EREER
HWELAREHE Fd$ik BA/EHEL LY 15 TEXHK
Directly Indirectly
E# EF:
% %
Advance Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100  Investment holding
REREBR LA N 28T REER
Celion Corp. British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
HERTRRE 15 AR
Chiefast Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100  Investment holding
HEERERA A BA 28T RERR
Crown Map International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding
BE 18T REER
Forty Enterprises Company Limited  Hong Kong HK$20,000 100 - Investment holding
ERLEARRA B8 20,000/ 7T REER
Giant Hero Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
B8 10,0007% 7 REER
Jia Feng (Macau) Companhia Macau MOP25,000 - 100  Property holding
Limitada
=2 (RFM) AR AT BF 25,0002 F7 % NERE
Joker Investments Company Hong Kong HK$20,000 100 - Investment holding
Limited
BRREBRAA BE 20,000/ 7T REER
Kingpart Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of
nominee
services
to group
companies
YUREBRRA BE 10,000/ 7T REAEARE
TEEAA
Parklane Industries Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
BREXBRAA N 10,000/ 7 REZR
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RE IR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —F—+&+_A=+—HIFE

29.MBARIZ—MRER »

29. GENERAL INFORMATION OF

SU BSI DIARIES (Continued)

Paid up issued

Proportion of
issued capital/

Place of ordinary share registered capital
incorporation capital/registered and voting power Principal
Name of subsidiary and operation capital held by the Company activities
#E ARRHFEEDRT
HEME LR BRTLER BRA/EMERR
HEARER FE-§ ok BRA/FMER REERLE TEEX
Directly Indirectly
=8 i &
% %

Rivera Holdings (Macau) - Macau MOP100,000 = 60  Property
Sociedade de Investimentos E development
Fomento Predial, Limitada and investment

NI &E CRF) BRAR R 100,000/ 9% MEERRBE

Rivera Management (H.K.) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of

secretarial and
administrative
services

to group
companies

IAER(FE)BRAR BB 10,000 7T REME R

TER R

TEERA
Rivera (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of

nominee

services

to group

companies

A (RBA)BRAR BB 10,000 7T RERE AR

TEE AT

Royton Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding

REHEARES E RERR
Shine Trip Limited Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
and securities
trading
WEER A A BB 4,000,000/ 7T BEZERR
EHEE

SOFIL - Sociedade de Fomento Macau MOP2,500,000 60 40 Property holding
Industrial de Macau, Limitada and investment

RATIEREERAR P 2,500,000 5 #& NEREREKE

Superwell Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding

REEEBRAA BB 10,000/ 7T RERK

125
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 2 —F—+t &+ _—_A=+—HIFE

29. GENERAL INFORMATION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Paid up issued

Place of ordinary share

Proportion of
issued capital/
registered capital

29.fBARIZ—MBRER

incorporation capital/registered and voting power Principal
Name of subsidiary and operation capital held by the Company activities
#gr ARRAHFEEDET
AR AL R BRTEBR BRA/EMERR
HEARER R BRA/FMER REEILE TEER
Directly Indirectly
H# i &
% %
FERBEXRBERRA Mainland China US$16,290,000 - 93.53  Property
(Shanghai Boulevard development
Real Estate Co., Limited) and investment,
(Note a) and investment
holding
FBREBEEXBRAR B 3 16,290,000% 7T MEZRERIZEM
(Hfita) REER
BB REERFR AR Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 93.53  Investment
(Note b) management
(Hiizb) B Ay i ARHE REEE
50,000,0007c
Note a:  The subsidiary is a sino-foreign equity joint Kiita - kB R A A — R+ B A K 7 &)
venture with limited liability established in hINEEBBR AT ©
the Mainland China.
Note b:  The subsidiary is a limited company Hiatb : B B A Al A& — K AE P B A it B 32 HY

established in the Mainland China and
solely funded by a foreign invested
enterprise.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period, or
at any time during the year.

IR EREEABEBRAF -

&I 1B 2 B 0 R R 2R 3 P A ) B B
EAIREEZEHES -
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Schedule of Principal Properties

EEYEK

At 31st December, 2017 R=Z—+&+-_A=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY KEBEE2ZYE

THE GROUP

Investment property BREYE

Approximate

Gross gross Estimated

Lot site area floor area Lease Group’s Stage of date of

Description number (Sq.m.) (Sq.m.) Use term interest  completion  completion
Ba

#E WRES HBEEERE ABEER R# BAES AKEZER THER fAixRAS
(FHK) (FHK)

Nossa Senhora 8869 and 5,255 20,500 Residential Freehold 60%  Vacantland  Pending for
Do Carmo, S.J., 10032 review
Taipa, Macau

RFIB BT A 8869 % 5,255 20,500 = KAKE 60% TEHR BRER

10032
Properties held for sale FEWME
Approximate
Lot gross Lease Group’s
Description number floor area Use term interest
(Sq.m.)
A S 3|
B WERmES ABREEE itk HAOEH 2R
(7 K)

Carparks, Phase I, Lot 1 and 8,936 Carpark Long term 93.53%

Tomson Beautiful Space, Lot 3,
No. 56-156, Lane 50, 17 Jiefang,
Guang Lan Road/Long Dong Avenue, Zhangjiang

Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, Pudong New
People’s Republic of China Area

hEE ARAME BT HRNE E i 8,936 BfI R 93.53%
RIS E B EE 5L
ERAKE,/ BHE50556E 1565 BREER
SR E B 17TEYE

R3E

Shop A on G/F and Basement of Block 1, 10258 1,875 Commercial Freehold 60%
Shop A on G/F and Basement
and Shop F and G on G/F of Block 2
and Carparks on Basement,

Edificio Tao Un, Caminho da Povoacao de
Cheok Ka, Taipa, Macau
RPIBE M ER TR E 10258 1,875 GES KAKRE 60%

F— i TASAL KIS -
F i TARAL RS -
i T FRGH AL R E A 2 B

* Excluding carparks.
NEIEEN ©
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PROPERTIES HELD BY

AN ASSOCIATE

Schedule of Principal Properties

At 31st December, 2017 R —Z—+F+_-_A=+—H

—XBEQRFERZUE

Properties under development BREDYE
Approximate Estimated
Lot Gross gross Lease  Group’s Stage of date of
Description number  site area floor area term interest Use completion completion
(Sq.m.) (Sq.m.)
i} B 311 fhst
E3 L amk BREER BOEH Pa 3 B RAKR xHRAH
(EHR) (EHX)
Phase I, ZJ Legend, Lot 1, 15,335 27,603  Medium to 37% Commercial Under Note
No. 225, Chen Hui Road, 27 Jiefang, long term planning
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Zhangjiang
Pudong New Area, Shanghal, Hi-Tech
People’s Republic of China Park,
Pudong
New Area
REARLAE LEDRRHE REHE 16335 27,608 FHERH 37% Bx REE Mt
R ERRER25% FiLa P
FLEH_H =
28R

Note: The development plans are still under review, the

completion time for this property project cannot be

estimated at this stage.

Properties held for sale

LRFEDERS T - BREXIBEFUYE

Kt -
A e B -
BTEYR

Approximate

gross floor Group’s
Description Lot number area Lease term interest Use
(Sg.m.)
BH
B3 WRES AREEE HOEH ZEEZER Rz
(EEK)
Carparks, Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Lot 1, 36,525 Long term 37% Carpark
Lane 825-828, Chen Hui Road, 27 Jiefang,
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Zhangjiang
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, Hi-Tech Park,
People’s Republic of China Pudong New
Area
hEARAME LETERTE ARIE 36,525 3 37% B
R =% B & R $5825-8285F KLREEER
RLimERESEM 2T
Carparks, Tomson Ginkgo Garden, Lot P1-P3, 59,223 Long term 37% Carpark
Lane 566, Ze Feng Road, Nangiao, 0002, 0013,
Fengxian District, Shanghai, 2002 Jiefang,
People’s Republic of China Nangiao,
Fengxian District
hEARANE EETEER ZERMBA 59,223 =8 37% By
MG E L ¥K5667F 0002 * 0013 *
mEREEN 2002174
P1-P3E
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Schedule of Principal Properties

At 31st December, 2017 R=ZZE—+F+=-A=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY

AN ASSOC IATE (Continued)

Investment properties

—XBELARBEEZYE»

Approximate

gross Group’s
Description Lot number floor area Lease term interest Use
(Sg.m.)
Ba
#15 WRER AREER HOFH X&EEzER ik
(7 K)
Phase |, Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Lot 1/2, 26 Jiefang, 14,517 Medium term 37% Commercial
Port, No. 690 Bibo Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Shanghali, Pudong New Area
People’s Republic of China
hEARLME LETHRTE BRHE 14,517 o 37% [GE
5T = R B R 2 K BE6905: FIRMEER
FLMEFE—H 268 471/2
Phase II, Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Lot 1/2, 26 Jiefang, 82,457 Medium term 37% Commercial
Port, No. 690 Bibo Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Shanghali, Pudong New Area
People’s Republic of China
PEARLNE LETRRNE BRAE 82,457 R 37% [GES
L= RHRE & 2K 3E6905% FIsHRER
FLMEFE_H 268 911/2
Phase |, ZJ Legend, Lot 1/6, 26 Jiefang, 26,492 Medium term 37% Commercial
No. 635 Bibo Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, Pudong New Area
People’s Republic of China
PEARANE LB HERAE RS 26,492 ik 37% [EE S
R RHRE & 2K 386355% FIGHKER
FIEH—H 266131/6
Phase Ill B, Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Lot 1, 27 Jiefang, 29,372 Long term 37% Residential
No. 68, 69, 72, Lane 828, Zhangjiang
Chen Hui Road, Hi-Tech Park,
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong New Area
Pudong New Area, Shanghali,
People’s Republic of China
hEARANE LETBRAE R 29,372 R H 37% e
FL= R E E R ER8287F FIHKER
68 69 * 72%% pigipinlis

Rz E SE=HBIR
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PROPERTIES HELD BY

AN ASSOC IATE (Continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Schedule of Principal Properties

At 31st December, 2017 R —Z—+F+_-_A=+—H

—XBEQNTRRBEEZYWE»

BEWE w2

Approximate

gross Group’s
Description Lot number floor area  Lease term interest Use
(Sg.m.)
B4
B2 WERER AEEEE HOFH FREz2ER A&
(EHXK)
Phase IV Commercial, Lot 1, 27 Jiefang, 6,366  Medium term 37% Commercial
Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Zhangjiang
No. 188, Lane 238, Huo Xiang Road, Hi-Tech Park,
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong New Area
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
R ARENE T BRHE BEHE 6,366 i 37% GES
L= R B R E & %2387 188% KLmHEER
®LinERENHEE W
Phase IV, Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Lot 1, 27 Jiefang, 36,049 Long term 37% Residential
No. 188, Lane 238, Huo Xiang Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, Pudong New Area
People’s Republic of China
mEARAME LETMERTE BRAE 36,049 =5 37% fFx
L= RHR B & 2 & 152387 1885 RIRMEER
&) T%E RE VPR
Commercial-cum-office building, Lot P1-P3, 0002, 10,801 Long term 37% Commercial
Lane 566, Ze Feng Road, Nangiao, 0013, 2002
Fengxian District, Shanghai, Jiefang, Nangiao,
People’s Republic of China Fengxian District
REARAME LEMEER =ERMEIEHE 10,801 =5 37% EES
#1562 2 355667 0002 * 0013 *
BHERBARE 2002%5 %5
P1-P3E
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HFEHEHRE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEmR

Year Ended 31st December
BE+T-A=1T-HLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—Z-=f C—T-mF _T-HF CZT-RF ZB-tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FTEL TEL TEL FTEL THERT
Gross proceeds from ReE=BE
operations 146,127 352,815 401,178 633,532 140,097
Profit before taxation B B A1 S A 310,433 212,363 169,127 320,023 271,578
Taxation BB (30,523) (19,167) 5,463 (14,173) 9,743
Profit for the year EREEA 279,910 193,196 174,590 305,850 281,321
Attributable to: DEMT
Owners of the Company ARAERFEEA 279,608 192,578 174,126 305,586 281,142
Non-controlling interests PR R R R S 302 618 464 264 179
279,910 193,196 174,590 305,850 281,321
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF #HZ&eH&EMRREK
FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31st December
Rt=A=+-H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
=% —Z-MFE —E-FF T F CZE—+tf
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FTAEL TEL TEL FTEL TERT
Property, plant and equipment 1% - BE R & & 9,023 7,703 7,385 6,337 5,290
Investment property KEME 28,563 28,563 28,563 28,563 28,563
Interest in an associate it NE]
2R 994,724 928,564 859,425 921,610 975,284
Deferred tax assets ELERBEE 17,385 16,973 16,245 15,324 16,594
Available-for-sale investments ] it H &% & 413,644 338,910 334,880 556,689 776,956
Net current assets MEBEEFE 767,760 940,746 1,043,340 1,101,279 1,187,804
Total assets less BEER
current liabilities mEAE 2,231,099 2,261,459 2,289,838 2,629,802 2,990,491
Equity attributable to ARAERFAA
owners of the Company i 2,148,791 2,183,267 2,232,101 2,566,614 2,947,204
Non-controlling interests J R R R 21,071 21,183 10,681 10,238 11,203
2,169,862 2,204,450 2,242,782 2,576,852 2,958,407
Non-current liability EnBEE 61,237 57,009 47,056 52,950 32,084
2,231,099 2,261,459 2,089,838 2,629,802 2,990,491
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